
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 

HEALTH OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 
 

Friday 9 May 2008 at 10.00 am Ask for: Paul Wickenden 
Council Chamber, Sessions House, County 
Hall, Maidstone 

  

 Telephone (01622) 694486 
 

Tea/Coffee will be available from 9.30am outside the meeting room 
 

 
Membership (17) 
 
Conservative (12): Lord Bruce-Lockhart (Chairman), Mr Chell, Mr Cope, Mr Crowther, 

Mr Curwood, Mr Davies, Mr Hirst, Mrs Hohler, Mr Horne, 
Dr Robinson, Mr Tolputt and Mrs Tweed 
 

Labour (4): Mr Fittock (Vice Chairman), Mrs Angell, Ms Harrison and 
Mrs Rowbotham 
 

Liberal Democrat (1): Mr Daley 
 

 
UNRESTRICTED ITEMS 

(During these items the meeting is likely to be open to the public) 
 

Item 
No 

 Timings 

1.   
 

Substitutes  
 

10.00 – 
10.10 am 

2.   
 

Declarations of Interests by Members in items on the Agenda for this 
meeting.  
 

 
 

3.   
 

Minutes – 28 March 2008 (Pages 1 - 10) 
 

 
 

4.   
 

Monitoring of outcomes from conclusions and recommendation of 
previous Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee meetings (Pages 11 
- 32) 
 
 
 

10.10 – 
10.20 am 

Public Document Pack



5.   
 

Working Group – Healthcare Commission Core Standards (Pages 33 - 
48) 
 

10.20 – 
10.30 am 

6.   
 

Draft Work Programme for June 2008 to April 2009 (Pages 49 - 54) 
 

10.30 – 
10.40 am 

7.   
 

Healthcare services in Dover (Pages 55 - 62) 
 

 

10.40 – 
11.40 am 

 Liz Shutler, Director of Strategic Development, Howard Jones, Director 
of Facilities, East Kent Hospitals NHS Trust, Lynne Selman, Director of 
Citizen Engagement, Sheila Pitt, Head of Practice-based 
Commissioning, and David Meikle, Director of Finance, Commissioning 
and Performance, Eastern and Coastal Kent PCT, will be in attendance 
for this item. 
 

 

11.40 – 11.55 am (BREAK) 

8.   
 

Our NHS, Our Future – Next Stage Review (Darzi Review) (Pages 63 - 
74) 

 
 

11.55 am 
– 12.55 
pm 

 Stephanie Hood, Director of Strategy and Communications, and David 
Mallett, Assistant Director, “Fit for the Future”, South East Coast 
Strategic Health Authority, will be in attendance for this item. 
 

 

9.   
 

Timetable for Foundation Trust status applications by trusts in Kent and 
Medway (Pages 75 - 78) 
 

12.55 – 
1.05 pm 

10.   
 

Conclusions and Recommendations  
 

1.05 – 
1.15 pm 

11.   
 

Date of next programmed meeting – Friday 13 June 2008 at 10.00am  
 

 

 

EXEMPT ITEMS 

(At the time of preparing the agenda there were no exempt items.  During any such items 
which may arise, the meeting is likely NOT to be open to the public.) 

 
Peter Sass 
Head of Democratic Services and Local Leadership 
(01622) 694002 
  
Thursday 1 May 2008 
 
Please note that any background documents referred to in the accompanying papers may 
be inspected by arrangement with the officer responsible for preparing the relevant report. 
 



KENT COUNTY COUNCIL 
______________________________ 

 

HEALTH OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

MINUTES of a meeting of the Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee held at Sessions 
House, County Hall, Maidstone on Friday 28 March 2008 
 
PRESENT: Lord Bruce-Lockhart (Chairman), Mr M J Fittock (Vice-Chairman), Mrs C 
Angell, Mr A R Chell, Mr B R Cope, Mr A D Crowther, Mr J Curwood, Mr M J Fittock, Ms A 
Harrison, Mr C Hibberd (substitute for Mrs S C Hohler), Mr G A Horne, MBE, S J G 
Kowaree (substitute for Mr D S Daley), Mr R A Marsh, Dr T R Robinson, Mr R Tolputt and 
Mrs E M Tweed 
 
OTHER MEMBERS PRESENT: Mr G K Gibbens (Cabinet Member for Public Health) and 
Mr W V Newman 
 
OBSERVERS:  Mr R Appadoo, Mr J Cunningham, Mrs A Evennett, Mr R Kenworthy, Mr J 
Larcombe, Mrs A Loveday, Mrs F Witherden (Patient and Public Involvement Fora) 
 
IN ATTENDANCE: Mr P D Wickenden, Overview, Scrutiny and Localism Manager, Dr D 
Turner, Research Officer to the Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee, and Mrs C A 
Singh, Democratic Services Officer (Overview and Scrutiny) 

 

UNRESTRICTED ITEMS 

 

11. Minutes 
 
RESOLVED: that the Minutes of the meeting held on 8 February 2008 were 
correctly recorded and that they be signed by the Chairman.   

 

12. Health services in Dover 
(Item 4) 
 
The Chairman introduced this item, noting that a formal referral had been received 
from the Patient and Public Involvement Forum (PPIF) for the Eastern and Coastal 
Kent PCT. Although the Forum would be disbanded, along with all other PPIFs, 
after 31 March 2008, he hoped that this formal referral would still be dealt with by 
the Committee. 
 
The Chairman suggested that he, the Vice Chairman and the Liberal Democrat 
Spokesman needed to discuss the Committee’s future work programme.  It might 
be necessary to set up working groups if the Committee was to keep to half-day 
meetings, as agreed previously. 
 
The Committee agreed to the Chairman, the Vice Chairman and the Liberal 
Democrat Spokesman meeting to discuss the way forward. 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 3

Page 1



28 March 2008 

 

08/os/hosc/032808/Minutes 032808.doc 

 

 

 

13. Healthcare Commission Annual Health Check  
 
Dartford and Gravesham NHS Trust 
(Item 5 – Mr M Devlin, Chief Executive, and Ms S Acott, Director of Performance 
and Service Development and Director Lead for Governance, Dartford and 
Gravesham NHS Trust were in attendance for this item at the invitation of the 
Committee) 

 
(1) The Chairman introduced Mr Devlin and Ms Acott and thanked them for attending.  

He felt that it would be helpful if they both outlined where they felt the Trust had 
made the most progress over the past year and where they had made the least 
progress. 

 
(2) Mr Devlin advised that the Trust had been looking to make a Core Standards 

declaration of “Fully met” (“Compliant” in respect of all Core Standards) for 2007–8. 
In 2006–7 there had been two areas relating to equality and diversity where the 
Trust had not performed adequately, leading it to declare itself “Not met” in respect 
of Core Standard C07e.  Mr Devlin advised that information was now available in a 
wider range of languages and more patient information on disability had been 
published on the Trust’s website. He advised the Committee that the Trust was 
now compliant in respect of this Core Standard, having been so since the middle of 
2007–8, but it would not be able to declare itself “Fully Met”, for that particular 
element as it had not been compliant for the whole year. However, given this was 
the only lapse and had been addressed within year, the Trust would be making an 
overall Core Standards declaration of “Fully met” for 2007–8.  

 
(3) Nevertheless, the Trust had not deteriorated in any respect and they were happy 

with the progress that had been made. 
 
(4) Mr Devlin conceded that in the first half of the year there had been more cases of 

MRSA than there should have been.  But there had been an improvement over the 
past four months.  Mr Devlin reminded the Committee that this was one of the best 
hospitals in the south east of England. 

 
(5) In response to whether the self assessment by Trusts for the Annual Health Check 

was similar to the system used in schools, Mr Devlin advised that the Quality of 
Services element of the Annual Health Check was based on performance against 
targets (which was measured objectively) and performance against Core 
Standards, rated by Trusts’ self-assessments, backed up by random inspections 
conducted by the Healthcare Commission. 

 
(6) In response to a question on the Trust now being in surplus and having no 

budgetary problems, Mr Devlin advised the Committee that the Trust had achieved 
annual surpluses for two years in a row: £¼ million in 2006–7 and £½ million in 
2007–8. He predicted that in 2008–9 there would be a surplus of £1 million, The 
Trust had a historic deficit of £1 million, which was being cleared by these in-year 
surpluses and would be completely cleared in 2008–9. The Trust’s Use of 

Page 2



28 March 2008 

 

08/os/hosc/032808/Minutes 032808.doc 

 

 

Resources score in the Annual Health Check should on this basis move from “Fair” 
to “Good” in 2008–9. 

 
(7) A Member asked whether the Trust was compliant with Core Standards in respect 

of the provision of dental services and diabetes services. Ms Acott explained that 
the Trust was not responsible for the provision of primary care dentistry. However, 
oral surgery was provided at the Darent Valley site by Medway Trust and this 
service was fully compliant with Core Standards.  With regard to diabetes services, 
these were excellent and compliant with Core Standards. 

 
(8) A Member asked how the needs of ethnic minority patients were being met in 

respect of dietary requirements and languages. A question was also asked about 
how the Trust ensured that older patients were eating their meals. Mr Devlin said 
that the PPIF had been critical of catering arrangements in its third-party 
commentary for the 2006–7 Annual Health Check, but was more positive this time. 

 
(9) The new catering contract was successful and this had been verified by the Trust 

Board.  On the issue of ensuring that older people ate their meals, Mr Devlin 
explained that any patient needing assistance with eating was served their meal on 
a red tray (instead of the usual blue tray), so that staff, including support staff, 
could help them.  Regarding language difficulties, Mr Devlin said that the Trust now 
had interpreters available. He added that 30% of the Trust’s staff were from ethnic 
minority backgrounds, meaning that a wide variety of languages was spoken 
among staff. 

 
(10) In response to a question about the Trust’s seeking Foundation Trust status, Ms 

Acott explained that the Trust had not yet put its application before the Department 
of Health. This had been put back from December 2007 as the Trust’s level of 
MRSA infection had been higher than it had wanted – and the Department of 
Health had “raised the bar” on infection control.  MRSA rates were now better so 
the Trust was more confident about taking its application to the DoH.  It would first 
be submitted to the South East Coast Strategic Health Authority at the end of 
March 2008. 

 
(11) Responding to a question about numbers of cases of Clostridium difficile, Ms Acott 

advised that the Trust’s position in this regard had been consistently good for some 
time.  Regarding cases of MRSA, under current NHS targets the Trust was not 
allowed more than twelve cases in 2007–8.  Ms Acott thought that the timetable for 
achieving Foundation Trust status was about right – Foundation Trust status would 
be achieved in the next six months. 

 
(12) In response to a question about pharmacy services, Mr Devlin advised that the 

Trust was trying to improve dispensing arrangements by setting up a pharmacy 
outlet for patients who were being discharged. 

 
(13) Mr Devlin said he was puzzled to hear that the quality of diabetes services had 

been queried by the West Kent PPIF.  Ms Acott said that she was aware that a 
camera used for diabetic retinopathy screening had not been working, but this was 

Page 3



28 March 2008 

 

08/os/hosc/032808/Minutes 032808.doc 

 

 

not a fundamental issue. She explained that the diabetic retinopathy screening 
service was being provided by a team from the Paula Carr Trust. 

 
(14) Responding to a question about the cost of the Trust’s Private Financial Initiative 

(PFI) contract, Ms Acott said that this did not impact on service delivery. 
 
(15) A Member asked how it was that the Trust had only been rated “Fair” for Use of 

Resources in the Annual Health Check for 2006–7 when it had actually achieved a 
surplus in that year. Mr Devlin advised that, under the Healthcare Commission’s 
rating system, having run up a deficit in 2005–6, the Trust needed to achieve a 
surplus in two consecutive years before it could be rated “Good” for Use of 
Resources. This would happen in 2007–8. Regarding the PFI contract, Mr Devlin 
said that this did have the virtue of protecting funds allocated to services such as 
catering, as he was not able to raid budgets that were set under the PFI contract. It 
could be argued that it was an expensive contract – but it did mean that the Trust 
was able, for instance, to offer a good, diverse catering service. 

 
(16) A Member asked whether the Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee’s minutes 

were forwarded, as a matter of course, to the Healthcare Commission and if not, 
why not. The Overview, Scrutiny and Localism Manager advised that the minutes 
were not forwarded to the Healthcare Commission. The Commission would not be 
able to process all the minutes of all the Health Overview and Scrutiny Committees 
in the country. Instead, it relied on the third-party commentaries that the 
committees submitted each year as part of the Annual Health Check process, 
commenting on Trusts’ performance against Core Standards.  In order to be able to 
provide these commentaries, the Committee needed to build up an evidence base 
throughout the year.  The Chairman agreed that the Committee needed a stronger 
evidence base to allow it to contribute to the Annual Health Check process. The 
Kent Local Involvement Network and Healthwatch would be important sources of 
information and feedback from patients about local NHS services. 

 
(17) The Chairman thanked Mr Devlin and Ms Acott for the information that they had 

given the Committee. 
  
 Maidstone and Tunbridge Wells NHS Trust 

(Item 6 – Mr Glenn Douglas, Chief Executive, and Ms Christina Edwards, Acting 
Chief Nurse, Maidstone and Tunbridge Wells NHS Trust were in attendance for this 
item at the invitation of the Committee) 

 
(1) The Chairman introduced Mr Douglas and Ms Edwards and thanked them for 

attending.  He then asked them to outline where the Trust had made the most 
progress and where the Trust had made the least progress. 

 
(2) Mr Douglas said that 2007–8 had been a strange year for the Trust, because of the 

Healthcare Commission’s investigation of the outbreaks of Clostridium difficile at 
the Trust’s hospitals and the consequences of this. However, he was confident that 
the Trust would be able to make a declaration of “Fully met” in respect of Core 
Standards for 2008–9. He said that good progress had been made on MRSA, with 
the Trust being one of the best performing on this. With regard to Clostridium 

Page 4



28 March 2008 

 

08/os/hosc/032808/Minutes 032808.doc 

 

 

difficile, the Trust had achieved all its targets and had in fact considerably 
undershot, with a steady decrease in cases even though the level of infection in the 
community was rising.  Mr Douglas tabled a list of the Core Standards that the 
Trust would be declaring it had failed to meet, stating that the Trust would be one 
of the worst in the country in this respect.  However, he explained that, given the 
amount of scrutiny that the Trust had been under lately, it needed to be “squeaky-
clean”. So where there was any doubt at all about compliance with a Core 
Standard, the Trust was making a declaration of “Not met”. He emphasised that 
this did not mean that the Trust was a “basket case”.  The Cancer Centre at 
Maidstone was among the best in the country and consistently exceeded its 
targets.  Genito-urinary Medicine had achieved 100% of its access targets.  At the 
same time, some other Trusts’ declarations, while not untruthful, could be 
described as optimistic. 

 
(3) A Member welcomed Mr Douglas’s honesty and openness, and asked what was 

being done to prevent bed-blocking – particularly in respect of tariff unbundling to 
allow more use to be made of community hospital beds. 

 
(4) Mr Douglas advised that tariff unbundling was a complex issue, and that there had 

in the past been a degree of suspicion between the Trust and West Kent PCT, with 
each being suspected of wanting to dump costs onto the other.  He admitted that 
the Trust had placed patients into nursing home beds in order to alleviate pressure 
on acute beds.  The Trust was all too well aware of the infection-control risks of 
putting beds too close together; and the PCT had been reluctant to reopen closed 
community hospital beds. 

 
(5) Mr Douglas said that his chief concern was to see that hospital beds were freed up. 

Whether this was done by patients going into community hospital beds or into 
nursing home beds was a secondary issue. Pressure had been put on the PCT to 
reopen community hospital beds, but he was not in a position to influence how the 
PCT dealt with this.   

 
(6) A Member put it to Mr Douglas that lack of finance seemed to underlie all the 

issues that the PPIF had raised in its third-party commentary for the Annual Health 
Check. He replied that it didn’t feel that way at the Trust. They had now 
considerably increased spending on nursing. There had been a recruitment freeze 
to hit financial targets; staffing levels on wards had been inadequate; and there had 
been too much reliance on bank and agency staff. However, this situation had now 
ended. Ms Edwards added that a lot of additional nurses had been appointed since 
November 2007.  The Trust would soon be up to the staffing level recommended 
by the Healthcare Commission.  Recruitment was made more difficult for the Trust 
by the fact that it was near to the London weighting area, where staff could make 
more money. 

 
(7) A Member said that service provision should drive the Trust, not financial issues; 

and stated that too many trained nurses were being poached by the Australian 
healthcare system.  Mr Douglas responded that the Trust was obliged, like all parts 
of the NHS, to make efficiency savings.  Ms Edwards said that the NHS in the 
South East had a lower rate of staff turnover than elsewhere (partly because it was 

Page 5



28 March 2008 

 

08/os/hosc/032808/Minutes 032808.doc 

 

 

a more rural area, meaning people tended to move around less).  The sickness 
rate among nurses was lower too.  She said that it was mainly young trained 
nurses who went to work in Australia – but they often came back. And it should be 
remembered that the NHS had taken nurses from other countries, many of whom 
had returned home with better skills, thereby improving nursing standards in their 
own countries. 

 
(8) A Member asked what the outcome had been in the cases of those members of 

staff who had recently been suspended by the Trust for poor practice in relation to 
infection control.  Mr Douglas replied that two members of staff had been 
dismissed and two had been given warnings.  Senior nurses were now taking more 
responsibility, which was key.  Also, maintenance staff were now under pressure 
from nursing staff to maintain high standards of cleanliness. 

 
(9) Responding to a question about setting up stroke units, Mr Douglas said that he 

was absolutely committed to seeing such units at both the Kent and Sussex 
Hospital and Maidstone Hospital. The unit at the Kent and Sussex would be open 
in June 2008.  At Maidstone a “virtual unit” was being created and staff were being 
recruited. A solution was being identified and this would be achieved.  He urged 
Members to visit the Trust’s hospitals and see how they were doing.  He added that 
the Trust was looking to set up its own patient panel, using the expertise of former 
PPIF members. 

 
(10) A Member advised that a relative of his was currently in Maidstone Hospital. He 

had been very impressed with the standard of cleaning and the care his relative 
was receiving.  However, on one occasion during visiting hours he had found his 
relative sitting in a chair completely naked.  Ms Edwards apologised for this 
occurrence and explained that the Trust still had a long way to go.  Staff were 
under a lot of scrutiny and the majority did a good job.  The Member’s complaint 
would be followed up, as all complaints were. The Trust welcomed complaints as a 
means of improving services. 

 
(11) The Chairman thanked Mr Douglas and Ms Edwards for answering the 

Committee’s questions so straightforwardly. 
 
 Eastern and Coastal Kent PCT  

(Item 7 – Lynne Selman, Director of Citizen Engagement and Communication, 
Karen Benbow, Assistant Director Assurance, and Debra Vidler, Head of 
Standards and Better Health, Eastern and Coastal Kent PCT, were in attendance 
for this item at the invitation of the Committee) 

 
(1) The Chairman introduced Ms Selman, Ms Benbow and Ms Vidler and thanked 

them for attending.  He asked them to detail where they felt there had been 
progress and where they felt there had been a lack of progress.  Ms Selman 
explained that the PCT had come into existence quite recently, following the 
merger of five predecessor PCTs, which had had differing levels of compliance with 
Core Standards.  The PCT’s rating against Core Standards mostly related to the 
services that it provided itself, but a few related to its performance as a 

Page 6



28 March 2008 

 

08/os/hosc/032808/Minutes 032808.doc 

 

 

commissioner of services.  In future the PCT would be rated much more on its 
commissioning function. 

 
(2) Ms Benbow reported that the PCT’s position had improved greatly.  In the 2006–7 

Annual Health Check it had been rated “Weak” on Quality of Services and “Fair” on 
Use of Resources.  For 2007–8, the PCT was predicting that it would be rated 
“Fair” on Quality of Services and “Good” on Use of Resources.  The PCT was 
expecting to declare itself “Compliant” in respect of 79% of Core Standards – as 
against 34% in 2006–7.  At the present moment, the PCT had “Not met” or had 
“Insufficient assurance” in respect of eight Core Standards, but it expected to be 
able to declare itself “Compliant” in respect of some of the latter at the end of 
2007–8.  Ms Benbow explained that successful efforts had been made during the 
year to harmonise a number of policies and procedures across the five 
predecessor PCT areas.  She advised that the PCT had been the subject of a 
Healthcare Commission visit during the year regarding its complaints procedures 
and there had been good progress following this.  Progress had also been made 
on clinical and corporate governance structures, and on medicines management.  
There were two standards in respect of which the PCT would be declaring “Not 
met” at the end of the year: C9, regarding records management; and C13c, 
regarding the treatment of patient information in a confidential manner. 

 
(3) A Member said that many patients felt they were unable to complain about the 

service provided by their GP as they feared being discriminated against as a result. 
Ms Selman responded that GP services were not directly provided by the PCT, as 
GPs were independent contractors, but the issue of complaints procedures should 
be picked up through the PCT’s annual Quality and Outcomes Framework visits to 
practices.  The PCT also encouraged the formation of practice groups, to give 
patients a voice. 

 
(4) Responding to a question about the Hygiene Code and infection control, Ms Vidler 

said that the Healthcare Commission’s report on the Clostridium difficile outbreaks 
at Maidstone and Tunbridge Wells Trust had been “a wakeup call”.  Appropriate 
plans had already been in place in respect of community hospitals, with significant 
improvements in implementation.  These plans were now much more detailed and 
subject to a higher level of scrutiny.  The PCT would, though, have to declare 
“Insufficient assurance” in respect of Core Standard C11b, as it had been lacking a 
system to monitor uptake of statutory and mandatory training by staff. 

 
(5) A Member raised the issue of inequalities in service provision, in relation to Core 

Standard C18, and the extent to which Swale in particular was underserved.  Ms 
Selman responded that investment was being made in services in Swale and other 
areas of underprovision.  Health and Wellbeing Groups had been set up across 
each of the district council areas covered by the PCT, with an Executive Director 
leading each of them.  She pointed out that in some respects, Swale actually had 
better services than other areas, for instance as regards audiology.  Meeting this 
Core Standard was about having systems in place to allow the PCT to identify 
underserved areas and act accordingly – this did not mean that all areas were well-
served at the current moment in time. 

 

Page 7



28 March 2008 

 

08/os/hosc/032808/Minutes 032808.doc 

 

 

(6) A Member asked about the scoring system used for the Annual Health Check, 
which appeared to mean that it took a long time before any improvement in 
performance was reflected in the PCT’s rating.  Ms Benbow agreed that the scoring 
system was quite complicated.  The Annual Health Check gave a retrospective 
annual rating made up of a number of elements.  There was some provision for the 
PCT to declare itself “Compliant” in respect of a Core Standard for the whole year 
having achieved compliance during the course of the year.  The PCT was 
expecting to be subject to a risk-based inspection by the Healthcare Commission 
over the summer, having moved from “Weak” to “Fair” in its self-assessment on 
Quality of Services. 

 
(7) A question was asked about the apparent lack of adequate procedures for 

managing the discharging of patients from acute care, at Medway Maritime 
Hospital, into intermediate care, to which the PPIF had drawn attention in its third-
party commentary for the Annual Health Check.  Ms Selman responded that there 
was a national contract covering this area, to which the PCT was adding 
requirements regarding the quality of information provided on discharge. 

 
(8) A question was asked about the PCT’s apparent slowness in rectifying disparities 

between services in Swale and those elsewhere, and lack of information on how 
investment in Swale had been spent, which had also been referred to by the PPIF.  
Ms Selman replied that about £1m of additional funding had been invested in 
Swale GP services, and money had been provided for new intermediate care 
services and other services, in order to rectify past underinvestment in the area. 

 
(9) A Member asked that the responses on these points be given in writing to the 

PPIF, which had raised them in its third-party commentary.  Ms Selman explained 
that the commentary was not addressed to the PCT, but was intended for the 
Healthcare Commission as part of the Annual Health Check process.  However, 
the PCT would be happy to provide a written response if the PPIF wished. 

 
(10) The Chairman asked about the matter of insufficient co-ordination and 

communication between the PCT and the Trust, which had been raised.  
Ms Selman said this related to discharging patients from Medway Maritime Hospital 
into community care.  She said that the PCT was conscious that there needed to 
be more and better communication between the Trust and the PCT in this regard. 

 
(11) The Chairman thanked Ms Selman, Ms Benbow and Ms Vidler for their 

encouraging report and for attending the meeting. 
 
Conclusions and Recommendations 

 (Item 8) 
 
(1) The Chairman suggested that, rather than the Committee now deliberating at 

length on what it had heard, a very full minute of the meeting should be prepared to 
allow matters to be taken forward – perhaps by submitting the minutes to the 
Healthcare Commission, as Member had suggested.  He thought there needed to 
be a discussion about how the Committee handled the Annual Health Check 
process next year, perhaps by means of a sub-committee.  It was pointed out by a 

Page 8



28 March 2008 

 

08/os/hosc/032808/Minutes 032808.doc 

 

 

Member that the Committee had still to hear from a number of local NHS 
organisations regarding their Annual Health Check declarations.  The Chairman 
suggested there were various ways in which this might be addressed during April. 

 
(2) The Chairman emphasised that, as the Committee had previously agreed, there 

should be a regular agenda item looking at what progress had been made on 
recommendations that it had previously made. 

 
(3) The Chairman informed the Committee that the external review panel regarding the 

planned reconfiguration of services by Maidstone and Tunbridge Wells Trust was 
due to be convened in May 2008. The Trust had indicated in April 2007 that a 
nominated Member of the HOSC might be allowed to observe the panel’s 
deliberations in order to be assured of the efficacy and robustness of the external 
review process.  The Chairman proposed, and it was agreed, that the Committee 
should appoint one member of the Committee to the External Review Panel and 
the nominee report back to this Committee. 

 

14. Update on Local Involvement Network (LINk) 
 (Item 9 – report by Mr G K Gibbens, Cabinet Member for Public Health) 
 
(1) A Member asked Mr Gibbens about the County Council’s proposed Healthwatch 

scheme and whether the Committee would get a chance to scrutinise the plans for 
this.  The Chairman said he thought that Healthwatch could play an important role 
in supporting the work of the Committee.  However, it was not on the agenda for 
this particular meeting. 

 
(2) Mr Gibbens explained that it had been intended the Kent LINk would be operational 

by 1 April 2008, as provided for in the legislation governing LINks. However, this 
had not proved possible.  The County Council had only learned in December 2007 
how much money it was going to receive to fund the LINk (£492,000 in the coming 
year, rising by £1,000 over the next two years).  Because of the high value of the 
contract for the LINk host organisation, the council was obliged to go through the 
EU tendering process, which took 39 days.  Expressions of interest had been 
received in late January and early February; and tenders were due back by 8 April.  
He emphasised that Kent was no further behind, or forward, than any other large 
local authority involved in this process.  Those authorities that had pressed ahead 
were Unitary Authorities, which were not covered by the EU process due to the 
smaller size of their LINk budgets.  An update meeting had been held with 
voluntary groups on 30 January 2008 at Lenham; as a result, 58 volunteers had 
expressed an interesting in joining a LINk working group.  Transitional 
arrangements would be effective from 1 April.  It was expected that the awarding of 
the contract for the LINk host organisation would come to Cabinet in June 2008.  
Meanwhile, various sub-groups of the 58-strong working group were being created, 
around particular issues.  The host organisation and the LINk would be made 
aware of all the legacy issues left behind by the PPIFs when they were abolished 
after 31 March 2008. 

 
(3) The Chairman, on behalf of the Committee, formally thanked the PPIFs for their 

work and their huge contribution to the NHS in Kent. Mr Gibbens, on behalf of the 

Page 9



28 March 2008 

 

08/os/hosc/032808/Minutes 032808.doc 

 

 

County Council, echoed the Chairman’s thanks and said he hoped former PPIF 
members would continue to be involved in health issues in the county. 

 
(4) A Member asked how the transitional arrangements would work, particularly in 

regard to social care matters, where there was a clear potential conflict of interest if 
the County Council was to temporarily fulfill the role of the LINk.  He also asked 
what would happen to the funding allocated to the LINk during the transitional 
period.  Mr Gibbens replied that expert help would be sought during the transitional 
period.  This was anticipated to last for three months, but the County Council would 
not be taking a commensurate amount (one quarter) of the annual funding 
allocation for the LINk (£492,000). It would only be seeking to cover its costs.  This 
would mean that the host organisation would effectively receive a cash bonus for 
funding the LINk when it was set up in June.  Mr Gibbens accepted that there was 
a potential conflict of interest in respect of social care matters during the 
transitional period.  Consequently, care was being taken, at both Member and 
officer levels, to ensure that those involved with setting up the LINk were not 
directly involved in discharging the council’s social care functions. 

 
(5) Another Member asked what consideration had been given to publicity and 

promotion of the LINk to the general public, and asked what signposting role the 
LINk would play.  Mr Gibbens replied that efforts had been made, including through 
voluntary groups, to make as many people as possible aware of the LINk.  As 
regards signposting, he said that the LINk would certainly be involved in playing 
this role. 

 
(6) A Member said she was very concerned about PPIF legacy issues and continuity 

between the PPIFs and the LINk.  At the same time, there had to be a broadening 
of the scope of public and patient involvement beyond the PPIFs’ base, so as 
better to reflect the diversity of the community in Kent.  She asked why it was 
taking so long to get the LINK set up.  Mr Gibbens reiterated that the County 
Council had been unable to begin the tendering process for the host organisation 
until the DoH had notified the level of funding available – and this had not 
happened until December 2007.  Other County Councils had found themselves in 
the same situation.  Mr Gibbens agreed that the LINk must have as broad a base 
of involvement as possible.  He had been disappointed that there had not been any 
representation from the gypsy and traveler community at the meeting in Lenham – 
although they had been invited.  The County Council would do all it could to ensure 
broad involvement. The tender document for the host organisation stipulated that it 
was expected to ensure this happened. 

Page 10



08/os/hosc/050908/Item 4 – Monitoring Report 

By:  Overview, Scrutiny and Localism Manager 
 
To:  Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee – Friday 9 May 2008 
 
MONITORING OF OUTCOMES FROM CONCLUSIONS AND 

RECOMMENDATIONS OF PREVIOUS HEALTH OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 

COMMITTEE MEETINGS 

 

 

Introduction 

 

1. Members will recall that it has been agreed a standing item should be before 
the Committee at each of its meetings to consider how NHS Trusts, Adult Social 
Services or the team supporting this Committee have taken forward conclusions and 
recommendations from the Committee’s discussions on issues which have been 
before it.  The Appendix sets out the matters on which the Committee has arrived at 
conclusions and recommendations in the past year and the outcomes of actions 
taken. 
 
Information/Feedback 

2. A number of recent conclusions and recommendations have only been taken 
up with NHS colleagues in the past week, so I would expect further replies and 
information to be available to the Committee at its June meeting. 
 

Recommendations  

 
3. The Committee is asked to note the report.   
 

 
 

Agenda Item 4

Page 11



Page 12

This page is intentionally left blank



K
e
n
t 
C
o
u
n
ty
 C
o
u
n
c
il
 

 

H
e
a
lt
h
 O
v
e
rv
ie
w
 a
n
d
 S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 

 
R
O
L
L
IN
G
 A
C
T
IO
N
 S
H
E
E
T
 

 A
s
k
 f
o
r:
 

A
n
g
e
la
 E
v
a
n
s
 

T
e
le
p
h
o
n
e
: 

0
1
6
2
2
 2
2
1
8
7
6
 

  M
in
u
te
s
 

re
fe
re
n
c
e
 

T
o
p
ic
 

N
H
S
 (
o
r 
o
th
e
r)
 

b
o
d
y
 c
o
n
c
e
rn
e
d
 

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 /
 a
c
ti
o
n
 p
o
in
t 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 /
 

b
ri
n
g
-

fo
rw

a
rd
 

d
a
te
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 t
a
k
e
n
 

2
3
 M
a
rc
h
 

2
0
0
7
 –
 1
7
 

C
a
n
c
e
r 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

A
ll 
a
c
u
te
 T
ru
s
ts
 

R
E
S
O
L
V
E
D
:-
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 s
h
o
u
ld
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 

m
o
n
it
o
r 
th
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
c
a
n
c
e
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
c
ro
s
s
 

K
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 M

e
d
w
a
y
. 

O
n
g
o
in
g
 

 

2
3
 M
a
rc
h
 

2
0
0
7
 –
 1
8
 

P
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 

W
h
it
s
ta
b
le
 

P
o
ly
c
lin
ic
 

- 
E
a
s
te
rn
 a
n
d
  

C
o
a
s
ta
l 
K
e
n
t 
P
C
T
 

- 
E
a
s
t 
K
e
n
t 

H
o
s
p
it
a
ls
 N
H
S
 T
ru
s
t 

R
E
S
O
L
V
E
D
:-
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
a
 p
o
ly
c
lin
ic
 a
t 

W
h
it
s
ta
b
le
 b
e
 k
e
p
t 
u
n
d
e
r 
re
v
ie
w
; 
a
n
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 

C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 w
e
lc
o
m
e
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 j
o
in
t 
m
o
d
e
lli
n
g
 b
y
 

a
ll 
th
e
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 o
n
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 p
ro
je
c
t 
s
o
 t
h
a
t 
a
 

re
a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
je
c
t 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 c
o
u
ld
 b
e
 

re
v
ie
w
e
d
 b
e
fo
re
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 w
e
re
 t
a
k
e
n
. 

O
n
g
o
in
g
 

P
ro
p
o
s
a
l 

s
c
ru
ti
n
is
e
d
 b
y
 

C
a
n
te
rb
u
ry
 

C
it
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il 

H
e
a
lt
h
 S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 

P
a
n
e
l 
o
n
 2
6
 

J
u
ly
 2
0
0
7
 

Page 13



 
 

 

M
in
u
te
s
 

re
fe
re
n
c
e
 

T
o
p
ic
 

N
H
S
 (
o
r 
o
th
e
r)
 

b
o
d
y
 c
o
n
c
e
rn
e
d
 

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 /
 a
c
ti
o
n
 p
o
in
t 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 /
 

b
ri
n
g
-

fo
rw

a
rd
 

d
a
te
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 t
a
k
e
n
 

T
h
e
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 c
o
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 t
h
a
t:
- 

 (a
) 
fu
rt
h
e
r 
w
o
rk
 n
e
e
d
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
 d
o
n
e
 t
o
 i
n
fo
rm

 t
h
e
 p
u
b
lic
 

o
f 
th
e
 n
e
w
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 b
e
in
g
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 b
y
 C
lin
ic
e
n
ta
; 

 

(b
) 
w
o
rk
 n
e
e
d
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 o
n
 t
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 

in
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 a
c
c
e
s
s
ib
ili
ty
 o
f 
h
e
a
lt
h
c
a
re
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 (
th
e
 

C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 n
o
te
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
is
 w
a
s
 a
 p
ie
c
e
 o
f 
w
o
rk
 t
h
a
t 
it
 

h
a
d
 s
e
t 
a
s
id
e
 f
o
r 
a
 T
o
p
ic
 R
e
v
ie
w
 S
e
le
c
t 
C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 t
o
 

u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 e
a
rl
y
 i
n
 t
h
e
 N
e
w
 Y
e
a
r)
; 

 

(c
) 
th
e
 i
s
s
u
e
 o
f 
th
e
 J
o
in
t 
s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 N
e
e
d
s
 A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 

s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 p
ic
k
e
d
 u
p
 b
y
 t
h
e
 H
e
a
lt
h
 O

v
e
rv
ie
w
 a
n
d
 

S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 i
n
 c
o
n
ju
n
c
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
 b
o
th
 H
e
a
lt
h
 

a
n
d
 A
d
u
lt
 S
o
c
ia
l 
C
a
re
 c
o
lle
a
g
u
e
s
; 

 

(d
) 
P
u
b
lic
 H
e
a
lt
h
 c
o
lle
a
g
u
e
s
 s
h
o
u
ld
 e
n
s
u
re
 (
p
o
s
s
ib
ly
 

u
s
in
g
 K
e
n
t 
T
V
) 
th
a
t 
th
e
 p
u
b
lic
 w
e
re
 m

a
d
e
 a
w
a
re
 o
f 
th
e
 

ri
s
k
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
ir
 h
e
a
ri
n
g
 p
o
s
e
d
 b
y
 p
ro
lo
n
g
e
d
 e
x
p
o
s
u
re
 t
o
 

lo
u
d
 m

u
s
ic
; 

 

1
4
 

D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
7
 –
 7
2
 

A
u
d
io
lo
g
y
 

- 
E
a
s
te
rn
 a
n
d
  

C
o
a
s
ta
l 
K
e
n
t 
P
C
T
 

- 
E
a
s
t 
K
e
n
t 

H
o
s
p
it
a
ls
 N
H
S
 T
ru
s
t 

- 
K
e
n
t 
A
d
u
lt
 S
o
c
ia
l 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

- 
M
a
id
s
to
n
e
 a
n
d
 

T
u
n
b
ri
d
g
e
 W

e
lls
 

N
H
S
 T
ru
s
t 

- 
M
e
d
w
a
y
 N
H
S
 

F
o
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 T
ru
s
t 

- 
W
e
s
t 
K
e
n
t 
P
C
T
 

(e
) 
d
a
ta
 c
o
lle
c
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 c
o
lla
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
a
u
d
io
lo
g
y
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

m
u
s
t 
b
e
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
d
, 
to
 e
n
a
b
le
 c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
rs
 t
o
 

c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly
; 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
0
8
 

 

Page 14



 
 

 

M
in
u
te
s
 

re
fe
re
n
c
e
 

T
o
p
ic
 

N
H
S
 (
o
r 
o
th
e
r)
 

b
o
d
y
 c
o
n
c
e
rn
e
d
 

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 /
 a
c
ti
o
n
 p
o
in
t 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 /
 

b
ri
n
g
-

fo
rw

a
rd
 

d
a
te
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 t
a
k
e
n
 

(f
) 
it
 n
e
e
d
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
 r
e
c
o
g
n
is
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
d
e
a
lin
g
 w

it
h
 a
 

p
a
ti
e
n
t 
w
it
h
 a
u
d
io
lo
g
y
 n
e
e
d
s
 w
a
s
 a
b
o
u
t 
m
o
re
 t
h
a
n
 j
u
s
t 

fi
tt
in
g
 a
 h
e
a
ri
n
g
 a
id
; 

 

(g
) 
p
a
ti
e
n
ts
 w
e
re
 e
n
ti
tl
e
d
 t
o
 c
o
p
ie
s
 o
f 
th
e
ir
 a
u
d
io
g
ra
m
s
; 

 

(h
) 
a
u
d
io
lo
g
y
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 r
e
c
o
g
n
is
e
d
 a
s
 a
n
 i
m
p
o
rt
a
n
t 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 p
la
n
s
 o
f 
th
e
 P
ri
m
a
ry
 C

a
re
 

T
ru
s
ts
; 

 

(i
) 
H
i-
K
e
n
t 
K
e
n
t 
p
ro
v
id
e
d
 a
 v
a
lu
a
b
le
 a
n
d
 w
e
ll-

re
s
p
e
c
te
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
; 

 

(j
) 
fu
rt
h
e
r 
w
o
rk
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 b
y
 t
h
e
 P
ri
m
a
ry
 

C
a
re
 T
ru
s
ts
 a
n
d
 o
th
e
rs
 t
o
 s
e
e
 w

h
e
th
e
r 
it
 m

ig
h
t 
b
e
 

fe
a
s
ib
le
 t
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 a
u
d
io
lo
g
y
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 “
H
ig
h
 

S
tr
e
e
t”
 p
ra
c
ti
ti
o
n
e
rs
 (
a
lo
n
g
 t
h
e
 s
a
m
e
 l
in
e
s
 a
s
 d
e
n
ta
l 

a
n
d
 o
p
ti
c
a
l 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
);
 

 

(k
) 
th
e
 H

e
a
lt
h
c
a
re
 C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
 A
n
n
u
a
l 
H
e
a
lt
h
 C
h
e
c
k
 

s
h
o
u
ld
 t
a
k
e
 a
c
c
o
u
n
t 
o
f 
R
T
T
 w

a
it
in
g
 t
im

e
s
 f
o
r 
a
u
d
io
lo
g
y
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
; 

 

(l
) 
a
 w

ri
tt
e
n
 r
e
p
o
rt
 o
n
 a
u
d
io
lo
g
y
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 

re
c
e
iv
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 H

e
a
lt
h
 O

v
e
rv
ie
w
 a
n
d
 S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 

C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 e
v
e
ry
 f
o
u
r 
m
o
n
th
s
; 

 

(m
) 
a
u
d
io
lo
g
y
 p
a
ti
e
n
ts
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 a
n
 

a
u
to
m
a
ti
c
 r
e
c
a
ll;
 

 

Page 15



 
 

 

M
in
u
te
s
 

re
fe
re
n
c
e
 

T
o
p
ic
 

N
H
S
 (
o
r 
o
th
e
r)
 

b
o
d
y
 c
o
n
c
e
rn
e
d
 

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 /
 a
c
ti
o
n
 p
o
in
t 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 /
 

b
ri
n
g
-

fo
rw

a
rd
 

d
a
te
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 t
a
k
e
n
 

(n
) 
a
s
 t
h
e
re
 h
a
d
 b
e
e
n
 n
o
 a
u
d
it
 o
f 
a
u
d
io
lo
g
y
 n
e
e
d
s
 

a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
 o
f 
K
e
n
t,
 t
h
is
 n
e
e
d
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
 

u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 a
s
 a
 m

a
tt
e
r 
o
f 
u
rg
e
n
c
y
; 

 

(o
) 
p
a
ti
e
n
ts
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
d
 t
o
 r
e
tu
rn
 h
e
a
ri
n
g
 

a
id
s
 w
h
e
re
 t
h
e
y
 w

e
re
 n
o
 l
o
n
g
e
r 
re
q
u
ir
e
d
 o
r 
a
re
 n
o
t 

b
e
in
g
 u
s
e
d
; 

 

(p
) 
P
C
T
s
 a
n
d
 o
th
e
rs
 n
e
e
d
e
d
 t
o
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
c
a
re
fu
lly
 t
h
e
 

m
e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 n
e
e
d
s
 o
f 
p
e
o
p
le
 w

it
h
 h
e
a
ri
n
g
 

im
p
a
ir
m
e
n
t.
 

 

R
E
S
O
L
V
E
D
 t
h
a
t:
- 

(a
) 
th
e
 c
o
n
c
lu
s
io
n
s
 o
f 
th
e
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 b
e
 c
o
n
v
e
y
e
d
 t
o
 

a
ll 
th
o
s
e
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
s
 h
a
v
in
g
 m

a
tt
e
rs
 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 f
o
rw

a
rd
; 

a
n
d
 

 

(b
) 
th
e
 C

o
m
m
it
te
e
 w

o
u
ld
 e
x
p
e
c
t 
a
n
 u
p
d
a
te
 o
n
 h
o
w
 

th
e
s
e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 w
e
re
 b
e
in
g
 d
e
a
lt
 w

it
h
 w
h
e
n
 i
t 
re
c
e
iv
e
d
 t
h
e
 

fi
rs
t 
w
ri
tt
e
n
 r
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
a
u
d
io
lo
g
y
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 i
n
 f
o
u
r 

m
o
n
th
s
’ 
ti
m
e
. 

T
o
p
ic
 

s
c
h
e
d
u
le
d
 f
o
r 

H
O
S
C
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
, 
1
3
 

J
u
n
e
 2
0
0
8
 

1
4
 

D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
7
 –
 7
3
 

D
e
n
ti
s
tr
y
 

- 
E
a
s
te
rn
 a
n
d
 

C
o
a
s
ta
l 
K
e
n
t 
P
C
T
 

- 
W
e
s
t 
K
e
n
t 
P
C
T
 

H
a
v
in
g
 h
e
a
rd
 a
n
d
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
s
 t
o
 i
ts
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
s
, 

th
e
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 r
e
a
c
h
e
d
 t
h
e
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 c
o
n
c
lu
s
io
n
s
: 

 a
) 
T
h
e
 C

o
m
m
it
te
e
 w

e
lc
o
m
e
d
 t
h
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 i
n
te
re
s
t 

s
h
o
w
n
 b
y
 d
e
n
ti
s
ts
 i
n
 t
a
k
in
g
 u
p
 N

H
S
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
. 
T
h
e
 

P
C
T
s
 w

e
re
 a
s
k
e
d
 t
o
 g
iv
e
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
c
o
n
s
id
e
ra
ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
0
8
 

 

Page 16



 
 

 

M
in
u
te
s
 

re
fe
re
n
c
e
 

T
o
p
ic
 

N
H
S
 (
o
r 
o
th
e
r)
 

b
o
d
y
 c
o
n
c
e
rn
e
d
 

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 /
 a
c
ti
o
n
 p
o
in
t 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 /
 

b
ri
n
g
-

fo
rw

a
rd
 

d
a
te
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 t
a
k
e
n
 

w
a
y
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
y
 c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
te
d
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 p
u
b
lic
 a
n
d
 

p
a
ti
e
n
ts
, 
p
a
rt
ic
u
la
rl
y
 a
ro
u
n
d
 c
h
a
rg
e
s
 f
o
r 
d
e
n
ta
l 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 
It
 w
a
s
 f
e
lt
 b
y
 t
h
e
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
re
 w

a
s
 a
 

p
e
rc
e
p
ti
o
n
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 p
u
b
lic
 d
id
 n
o
t 
k
n
o
w
 w
h
a
t 
th
e
y
 a
re
 

e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 t
o
 p
a
y
 a
n
d
 t
h
is
 m

ig
h
t 
b
e
 e
x
a
c
e
rb
a
ti
n
g
 h
e
a
lt
h
 

in
e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 b
y
 d
is
c
o
u
ra
g
in
g
 t
h
e
 l
e
s
s
 w
e
ll-
o
ff
 f
ro
m
 

s
e
e
k
in
g
 t
re
a
tm

e
n
t.
 

  b
) 
T
h
e
 C

o
m
m
it
te
e
 w

o
u
ld
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
re
 w

a
s
 a
n
 

in
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
a
u
d
it
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 o
f 
d
e
n
ti
s
tr
y
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 

a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
ty
. 
T
h
e
 C

o
m
m
it
te
e
 w

o
u
ld
 a
ls
o
 

w
e
lc
o
m
e
 q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
 r
e
p
o
rt
s
 b
e
in
g
 m

a
d
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 t
o
 i
t 

re
g
a
rd
in
g
 N
H
S
 d
e
n
ti
s
tr
y
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
. 

 

 

c
) 
D
e
ta
ils
 o
f 
u
n
m
e
t 
n
e
e
d
 f
o
r 
d
e
n
ti
s
tr
y
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 

c
o
u
n
ty
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 m

a
d
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 i
n
 t
h
e
 P
ri
m
a
ry
 C
a
re
 

T
ru
s
ts
’ 
L
o
c
a
l 
D
e
liv
e
ry
 P
la
n
s
. 
T
h
e
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 w
o
u
ld
 

w
e
lc
o
m
e
 d
e
ta
ils
 o
f 
h
o
w
 m

a
n
y
 N
H
S
 d
e
n
ti
s
ts
 t
h
e
re
 w
e
re
 

in
 t
o
ta
l 
a
n
d
 w
h
e
re
 t
h
e
y
 w

e
re
 s
it
u
a
te
d
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 

c
o
u
n
ty
. 

 

 

Page 17



 
 

 

M
in
u
te
s
 

re
fe
re
n
c
e
 

T
o
p
ic
 

N
H
S
 (
o
r 
o
th
e
r)
 

b
o
d
y
 c
o
n
c
e
rn
e
d
 

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 /
 a
c
ti
o
n
 p
o
in
t 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 /
 

b
ri
n
g
-

fo
rw

a
rd
 

d
a
te
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 t
a
k
e
n
 

R
E
S
O
L
V
E
D
:-
 

(a
) 
T
h
a
t 
th
e
 c
o
n
c
lu
s
io
n
s
 o
f 
th
e
 C

o
m
m
it
te
e
 b
e
 d
ra
w
n
 t
o
 

th
e
 a
tt
e
n
ti
o
n
 o
f 
h
e
a
lt
h
 c
o
lle
a
g
u
e
s
; 
a
n
d
 

 

 

(b
) 
th
a
t 
a
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 r
e
p
o
rt
 o
n
 h
o
w
 t
h
e
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
’s
 

v
ie
w
s
 w

e
re
 b
e
in
g
 t
a
k
e
n
 f
o
rw

a
rd
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 m

a
d
e
 

a
v
a
ila
b
le
 t
o
 t
h
e
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 i
n
 f
o
u
r 
m
o
n
th
s
’ 
ti
m
e
. 

T
o
p
ic
 

s
c
h
e
d
u
le
d
 f
o
r 

H
O
S
C
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
, 
1
8
 

J
u
ly
 2
0
0
8
 

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 a
ri
s
in
g
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 H
e
a
lt
h
 O

v
e
rv
ie
w
 

a
n
d
 S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 o
n
 1
1
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
0
8
, 

a
g
re
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 V
ic
e
-C

h
a
ir
m
a
n
, 
th
e
 C
o
n
s
e
rv
a
ti
v
e
 G

ro
u
p
 

S
p
o
k
e
s
m
a
n
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 L
ib
e
ra
l 
D
e
m
o
c
ra
t 
G
ro
u
p
 

S
p
o
k
e
s
m
a
n
: 

 a
) 

th
a
t 
th
e
 C

o
m
m
it
te
e
 n
e
e
d
e
d
 t
o
 s
ta
y
 a
b
re
a
s
t 
o
f 

p
ro
g
re
s
s
 o
n
 t
h
e
 A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
 f
o
r 
im

p
le
m
e
n
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 

re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 o
f 
th
e
 C
a
re
rs
 i
n
 K
e
n
t 
S
e
le
c
t 

C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
; 

 
 

1
1
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 

2
0
0
8
 –
 7
9
 

M
e
n
ta
l 

h
e
a
lt
h
 

- 
K
e
n
t 
A
d
u
lt
 S
o
c
ia
l 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

- 
K
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 M
e
d
w
a
y
 

N
H
S
 a
n
d
 S
o
c
ia
l 

C
a
re
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

T
ru
s
t 

- 
M
e
d
w
a
y
 P
C
T
 

b
) 

th
a
t 
th
e
 C

o
m
m
it
te
e
 m

u
s
t 
k
e
e
p
 u
p
-t
o
-d
a
te
 w
it
h
 

im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 
K
C
C
’s
 Y
o
u
n
g
 C
a
re
rs
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

“I
n
v
is
ib
le
 P
e
o
p
le
”;
 

 
 

Page 18



 
 

 

M
in
u
te
s
 

re
fe
re
n
c
e
 

T
o
p
ic
 

N
H
S
 (
o
r 
o
th
e
r)
 

b
o
d
y
 c
o
n
c
e
rn
e
d
 

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 /
 a
c
ti
o
n
 p
o
in
t 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 /
 

b
ri
n
g
-

fo
rw

a
rd
 

d
a
te
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 t
a
k
e
n
 

c
) 

th
a
t 
th
e
 C

o
m
m
it
te
e
 m

u
s
t 
d
e
c
id
e
 w
h
e
th
e
r 
it
 

w
is
h
e
d
 t
o
 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 o
n
 t
h
e
 

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 T
ru
s
t’
s
 a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
F
o
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 T
ru
s
t 

s
ta
tu
s
; 

 
T
o
p
ic
 

s
c
h
e
d
u
le
d
 f
o
r 

H
O
S
C
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
, 
1
3
 

J
u
n
e
 2
0
0
8
 

d
) 

th
a
t 
s
u
b
m
it
ti
n
g
 t
h
ir
d
-p
a
rt
y
 c
o
m
m
e
n
ta
ri
e
s
 f
o
r 
th
e
 

H
e
a
lt
h
c
a
re
 C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
’s
 A
n
n
u
a
l 
H
e
a
lt
h
 C
h
e
c
k
 w

a
s
 

c
o
re
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 f
o
r 
th
e
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
; 

3
0
 A
p
ri
l 

2
0
0
8
 

(H
e
a
lt
h
c
a
re
 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
 

d
e
a
d
lin
e
 f
o
r 

re
c
e
ip
t 
o
f 

C
o
re
 

S
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 

d
e
c
la
ra
ti
o
n
s
 

a
n
d
 t
h
ir
d
-

p
a
rt
y
 

c
o
m
m
e
n
ta
ri

e
s
) 

M
in
u
te
s
 o
f 

H
O
S
C
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 

o
n
 2
8
 M
a
rc
h
 

2
0
0
8
 s
e
n
t 
to
 

D
a
rt
fo
rd
 a
n
d
 

G
ra
v
e
s
h
a
m
 

N
H
S
 T
ru
s
t,
 

M
a
id
s
to
n
e
 a
n
d
 

T
u
n
b
ri
d
g
e
 

W
e
lls
 N
H
S
 

T
ru
s
t,
 a
n
d
 

E
a
s
te
rn
 a
n
d
 

C
o
a
s
ta
l 
K
e
n
t 

P
C
T
 f
o
r 

s
u
b
m
is
s
io
n
 t
o
 

H
e
a
lt
h
c
a
re
 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
 

w
it
h
 C
o
re
 

S
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 

d
e
c
la
ra
ti
o
n
s
 

Page 19



 
 

 

M
in
u
te
s
 

re
fe
re
n
c
e
 

T
o
p
ic
 

N
H
S
 (
o
r 
o
th
e
r)
 

b
o
d
y
 c
o
n
c
e
rn
e
d
 

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 /
 a
c
ti
o
n
 p
o
in
t 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 /
 

b
ri
n
g
-

fo
rw

a
rd
 

d
a
te
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 t
a
k
e
n
 

e
) 

to
 w
e
lc
o
m
e
 N
H
S
 c
o
lle
a
g
u
e
s
’ 
u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
in
g
 t
o
 

p
ro
v
id
e
 d
e
ta
ils
 a
b
o
u
t 
th
e
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 
fu
n
d
in
g
 f
o
r 
m
e
n
ta
l 

h
e
a
lt
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 h
o
w
 i
t 
w
a
s
 a
llo
c
a
te
d
, 
to
 e
n
a
b
le
 t
h
e
 

C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 a
n
y
 g
a
p
s
; 

 
 

f)
 

to
 r
e
q
u
e
s
t 
fr
o
m
 N

H
S
 c
o
lle
a
g
u
e
s
 a
 s
im

p
le
 

e
x
p
la
n
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
h
o
w
 t
h
e
 v
a
ri
o
u
s
 t
y
p
e
s
 o
f 
m
e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 (
C
R
H
T
, 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 H
e
a
lt
h
 M

e
n
ta
l 
H
e
a
lt
h
 

te
a
m
s
, 
e
tc
.)
 a
ll 
fi
tt
e
d
 t
o
g
e
th
e
r,
 w

it
h
 a
 b
ri
e
f 
s
u
m
m
a
ry
 o
f 

th
e
 r
o
le
 p
la
y
e
d
 b
y
 e
a
c
h
; 

 
 

g
) 

th
a
t 
th
e
 C

o
m
m
it
te
e
 s
h
o
u
ld
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
th
e
 

fe
a
s
ib
ili
ty
 o
f 
a
 “
o
n
e
-s
to
p
 s
h
o
p
” 
a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 t
o
 h
o
s
p
it
a
l 

a
d
m
is
s
io
n
, 
w
h
ic
h
 h
a
d
 b
e
e
n
 m

e
n
ti
o
n
e
d
 i
n
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
; 

 
 

h
) 

to
 w
e
lc
o
m
e
 N
H
S
 c
o
lle
a
g
u
e
s
’ 
u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
in
g
 t
o
 

p
ro
v
id
e
 t
h
e
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 w

it
h
 a
 f
u
ll 
b
e
d
s
 s
c
h
e
d
u
le
 f
o
r 
a
ll 

4
6
 o
f 
th
e
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 T
ru
s
t’
s
 w

a
rd
s
; 

 
In
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 

re
c
e
iv
e
d
 f
ro
m
 

K
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

M
e
d
w
a
y
 N
H
S
 

a
n
d
 S
o
c
ia
l 

C
a
re
 

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

T
ru
s
t,
 2
1
 A
p
ri
l 

2
0
0
8
 

Page 20



 
 

 

M
in
u
te
s
 

re
fe
re
n
c
e
 

T
o
p
ic
 

N
H
S
 (
o
r 
o
th
e
r)
 

b
o
d
y
 c
o
n
c
e
rn
e
d
 

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 /
 a
c
ti
o
n
 p
o
in
t 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 /
 

b
ri
n
g
-

fo
rw

a
rd
 

d
a
te
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 t
a
k
e
n
 

i)
 

to
 i
n
v
e
s
ti
g
a
te
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 i
n
 A
&
E
 

d
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
ts
 r
e
g
a
rd
in
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
 w
h
o
 p
re
s
e
n
t 
w
it
h
 

m
e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 i
s
s
u
e
s
, 
a
n
d
 w
h
e
th
e
r 
a
 m

o
re
 c
o
n
s
is
te
n
t 

a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
, 
b
a
s
e
d
 o
n
 b
e
s
t 
p
ra
c
ti
c
e
, 
w
a
s
 n
e
e
d
e
d
; 

 
In
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 

re
c
e
iv
e
d
 f
ro
m
 

K
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

M
e
d
w
a
y
 N
H
S
 

a
n
d
 S
o
c
ia
l 

C
a
re
 

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

T
ru
s
t,
 2
1
 A
p
ri
l 

2
0
0
8
 

j)
 

to
 l
o
o
k
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
a
t 
th
e
 i
s
s
u
e
 o
f 
tr
a
in
in
g
 f
o
r 
G
P
s
, 

th
e
 p
o
lic
e
, 
a
m
b
u
la
n
c
e
 s
ta
ff
 a
n
d
 f
ir
e
fi
g
h
te
rs
 a
s
 r
e
g
a
rd
s
 

d
e
a
lin
g
 w

it
h
 m

e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
; 

 
 

k
) 

to
 e
x
a
m
in
e
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
th
e
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 o
f 
o
u
t-
o
f-
h
o
u
rs
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 
p
a
rt
ic
u
la
rl
y
 i
n
 r
e
s
p
e
c
t 
o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
 

p
re
s
e
n
ti
n
g
 w
it
h
 l
e
s
s
 s
e
ri
o
u
s
 c
o
n
d
it
io
n
s
, 
s
u
c
h
 a
s
 

p
e
rs
o
n
a
lit
y
 d
is
o
rd
e
rs
; 

 
 

l)
 

th
a
t 
th
e
re
 w
a
s
 a
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 l
o
o
k
 a
t 
th
e
 i
s
s
u
e
 o
f 
le
s
s
 

w
e
ll-
o
ff
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
 e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
in
g
 d
if
fi
c
u
lt
y
 a
c
c
e
s
s
in
g
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 d
u
e
 t
o
 l
a
c
k
 o
f 
tr
a
n
s
p
o
rt
; 

 
 

m
) 

to
 p
u
rs
u
e
 t
h
e
 m

a
tt
e
r 
o
f 
p
ro
v
id
in
g
 b
e
tt
e
r 

in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
th
e
 p
u
b
lic
 (
th
ro
u
g
h
 m

e
a
n
s
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 

K
e
n
t 
T
V
) 
a
b
o
u
t 
m
e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 h
o
w
 t
o
 g
o
 

a
b
o
u
t 
a
c
c
e
s
s
in
g
 t
h
e
m
; 

 
 

Page 21



 
 

 

M
in
u
te
s
 

re
fe
re
n
c
e
 

T
o
p
ic
 

N
H
S
 (
o
r 
o
th
e
r)
 

b
o
d
y
 c
o
n
c
e
rn
e
d
 

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 /
 a
c
ti
o
n
 p
o
in
t 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 /
 

b
ri
n
g
-

fo
rw

a
rd
 

d
a
te
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 t
a
k
e
n
 

n
) 

to
 a
c
k
n
o
w
le
d
g
e
 t
h
e
 v
a
lu
a
b
le
 r
o
le
 o
f 
th
e
 

v
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 s
e
c
to
r 
in
 t
h
e
 m

e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 f
ie
ld
; 

 
 

o
) 

th
a
t 
a
n
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
tl
y
 c
h
a
ir
e
d
 e
v
e
n
t 
s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 

a
rr
a
n
g
e
d
 f
o
r 
a
ll 
m
e
n
ta
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
, 

in
c
lu
d
in
g
 t
h
e
 v
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 s
e
c
to
r,
 t
o
 e
x
p
lo
re
 h
o
w
 t
o
 w
o
rk
 

to
g
e
th
e
r 
m
o
re
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly
 t
o
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
c
ro
s
s
 

K
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 M

e
d
w
a
y
. 

 
 

2
8
 M
a
rc
h
 

2
0
0
8
 –
 1
3
 

H
e
a
lt
h
c
a
re
 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io

n
 A
n
n
u
a
l 

H
e
a
lt
h
 

C
h
e
c
k
 

A
ll 
tr
u
s
ts
 

T
h
e
 C
h
a
ir
m
a
n
 s
u
g
g
e
s
te
d
 t
h
a
t,
 r
a
th
e
r 
th
a
n
 t
h
e
 

C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 n
o
w
 d
e
lib
e
ra
ti
n
g
 a
t 
le
n
g
th
 o
n
 w
h
a
t 
it
 h
a
d
 

h
e
a
rd
, 
a
 v
e
ry
 f
u
ll 
m
in
u
te
 o
f 
th
e
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 

p
re
p
a
re
d
 t
o
 a
llo
w
 m

a
tt
e
rs
 t
o
 b
e
 t
a
k
e
n
 f
o
rw

a
rd
 –
 

p
e
rh
a
p
s
 b
y
 s
u
b
m
it
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 m

in
u
te
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 H
e
a
lt
h
c
a
re
 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
, 
a
s
 M

e
m
b
e
r 
h
a
d
 s
u
g
g
e
s
te
d
. 
 H
e
 t
h
o
u
g
h
t 

th
e
re
 n
e
e
d
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
 a
 d
is
c
u
s
s
io
n
 a
b
o
u
t 
h
o
w
 t
h
e
 

C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 h
a
n
d
le
d
 t
h
e
 A
n
n
u
a
l 
H
e
a
lt
h
 C
h
e
c
k
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 

n
e
x
t 
y
e
a
r,
 p
e
rh
a
p
s
 b
y
 m

e
a
n
s
 o
f 
a
 s
u
b
-c
o
m
m
it
te
e
. 
 I
t 

w
a
s
 p
o
in
te
d
 o
u
t 
b
y
 a
 M

e
m
b
e
r 
th
a
t 
th
e
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 h
a
d
 

s
ti
ll 
to
 h
e
a
r 
fr
o
m
 a
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
lo
c
a
l 
N
H
S
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 

re
g
a
rd
in
g
 t
h
e
ir
 A
n
n
u
a
l 
H
e
a
lt
h
 C
h
e
c
k
 d
e
c
la
ra
ti
o
n
s
. 
 T
h
e
 

C
h
a
ir
m
a
n
 s
u
g
g
e
s
te
d
 t
h
e
re
 w
e
re
 v
a
ri
o
u
s
 w
a
y
s
 i
n
 w
h
ic
h
 

th
is
 m

ig
h
t 
b
e
 a
d
d
re
s
s
e
d
 d
u
ri
n
g
 A
p
ri
l.
 

3
0
 A
p
ri
l 

2
0
0
8
 

(H
e
a
lt
h
c
a
re
 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
 

d
e
a
d
lin
e
 f
o
r 

re
c
e
ip
t 
o
f 

C
o
re
 

S
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 

d
e
c
la
ra
ti
o
n
s
 

a
n
d
 t
h
ir
d
-

p
a
rt
y
 

c
o
m
m
e
n
ta
ri

e
s
) 

M
in
u
te
s
 o
f 

H
O
S
C
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 

o
n
 2
8
 M
a
rc
h
 

2
0
0
8
 s
e
n
t 
to
 

D
a
rt
fo
rd
 a
n
d
 

G
ra
v
e
s
h
a
m
 

N
H
S
 T
ru
s
t,
 

M
a
id
s
to
n
e
 a
n
d
 

T
u
n
b
ri
d
g
e
 

W
e
lls
 N
H
S
 

T
ru
s
t,
 a
n
d
 

E
a
s
te
rn
 a
n
d
 

C
o
a
s
ta
l 
K
e
n
t 

P
C
T
 f
o
r 

s
u
b
m
is
s
io
n
 t
o
 

H
e
a
lt
h
c
a
re
 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
 

w
it
h
 C
o
re
 

Page 22



 
 

 

M
in
u
te
s
 

re
fe
re
n
c
e
 

T
o
p
ic
 

N
H
S
 (
o
r 
o
th
e
r)
 

b
o
d
y
 c
o
n
c
e
rn
e
d
 

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 /
 a
c
ti
o
n
 p
o
in
t 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 /
 

b
ri
n
g
-

fo
rw

a
rd
 

d
a
te
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 t
a
k
e
n
 

S
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 

d
e
c
la
ra
ti
o
n
s
; 

W
o
rk
in
g
 G
ro
u
p
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
 h
e
ld
 

o
n
 2
5
 A
p
ri
l 

2
0
0
8
, 
to
 

d
is
c
u
s
s
 w
it
h
 

o
th
e
r 
tr
u
s
ts
 

th
e
ir
 

d
e
c
la
ra
ti
o
n
s
 

2
8
 M
a
rc
h
 

2
0
0
8
 –
 1
3
 

R
e
c
o
n
fi
g
u
r

a
ti
o
n
 o
f 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

M
a
id
s
to
n
e
 a
n
d
 

T
u
n
b
ri
d
g
e
 W

e
lls
 

N
H
S
 T
ru
s
t 

T
h
e
 C
h
a
ir
m
a
n
 i
n
fo
rm

e
d
 t
h
e
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 

e
x
te
rn
a
l 
re
v
ie
w
 p
a
n
e
l 
re
g
a
rd
in
g
 t
h
e
 p
la
n
n
e
d
 

re
c
o
n
fi
g
u
ra
ti
o
n
 o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 b
y
 M

a
id
s
to
n
e
 a
n
d
 

T
u
n
b
ri
d
g
e
 W

e
lls
 T
ru
s
t 
w
a
s
 d
u
e
 t
o
 b
e
 c
o
n
v
e
n
e
d
 i
n
 M

a
y
 

2
0
0
8
. 
T
h
e
 T
ru
s
t 
h
a
d
 i
n
d
ic
a
te
d
 i
n
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
0
7
 t
h
a
t 
a
 

n
o
m
in
a
te
d
 M

e
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
th
e
 H
O
S
C
 m

ig
h
t 
b
e
 a
llo
w
e
d
 t
o
 

o
b
s
e
rv
e
 t
h
e
 p
a
n
e
l’s
 d
e
lib
e
ra
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 o
rd
e
r 
to
 b
e
 

a
s
s
u
re
d
 o
f 
th
e
 e
ff
ic
a
c
y
 a
n
d
 r
o
b
u
s
tn
e
s
s
 o
f 
th
e
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 

re
v
ie
w
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
. 
 T
h
e
 C
h
a
ir
m
a
n
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
, 
a
n
d
 i
t 
w
a
s
 

a
g
re
e
d
, 
th
a
t 
th
e
 C

o
m
m
it
te
e
 s
h
o
u
ld
 a
p
p
o
in
t 
o
n
e
 

m
e
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
th
e
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 E
x
te
rn
a
l 
R
e
v
ie
w
 

P
a
n
e
l 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 n
o
m
in
e
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
 b
a
c
k
 t
o
 t
h
is
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
. 

M
a
y
 2
0
0
8
 

P
C
T
 a
d
v
is
e
d
 

a
s
 f
o
llo
w
s
 o
n
 

1
7
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
0
8
: 

“A
s
 t
h
e
 

e
x
te
rn
a
l 
p
a
n
e
l 

is
 c
o
m
p
o
s
e
d
 o
f 

c
lin
ic
a
l 
e
x
p
e
rt
s
 

th
a
t 
h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 

c
h
a
rg
e
d
 t
o
 

re
v
ie
w
 t
h
e
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 f
o
r 

ro
ta
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
, 

a
c
c
re
d
it
a
ti
o
n
 

c
o
m
p
lia
n
c
e
 

a
n
d
 c
lin
ic
a
l 

s
a
fe
ty
, 
a
n
d
 

c
o
m
m
e
n
d
 i
ts
 

Page 23



 
 

 

M
in
u
te
s
 

re
fe
re
n
c
e
 

T
o
p
ic
 

N
H
S
 (
o
r 
o
th
e
r)
 

b
o
d
y
 c
o
n
c
e
rn
e
d
 

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 /
 a
c
ti
o
n
 p
o
in
t 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 /
 

b
ri
n
g
-

fo
rw

a
rd
 

d
a
te
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 t
a
k
e
n
 

v
ie
w
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

P
C
T
 B
o
a
rd
, 
it
 

is
 b
y
 n
a
tu
re
 

s
m
a
ll 
a
n
d
 

te
c
h
n
ic
a
lly
 

q
u
a
lif
ie
d
 t
o
 

p
e
rf
o
rm

 t
h
is
. 

M
e
m
b
e
rs
 a
re
 

P
ro
fe
s
s
o
r 

C
o
b
b
, 
a
n
 

e
x
te
rn
a
l 

D
ir
e
c
to
r-
le
v
e
l 

S
u
rg
ic
a
l 

N
u
rs
e
, 
th
e
 

P
C
T
’s
 M
e
d
ic
a
l 

D
ir
e
c
to
r 
a
n
d
 a
 

m
e
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
th
e
 

M
a
id
s
to
n
e
 

L
M
C
 [
L
o
c
a
l 

M
e
d
ic
a
l 

C
o
m
m
it
te
e
, 

re
p
re
s
e
n
ti
n
g
 

lo
c
a
l 
G
P
s
].
 I
t 

m
a
y
 t
h
e
re
fo
re
 

b
e
 m
o
re
 

h
e
lp
fu
l 
if
 a
 

p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 

Page 24



 
 

 

M
in
u
te
s
 

re
fe
re
n
c
e
 

T
o
p
ic
 

N
H
S
 (
o
r 
o
th
e
r)
 

b
o
d
y
 c
o
n
c
e
rn
e
d
 

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 /
 a
c
ti
o
n
 p
o
in
t 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 /
 

b
ri
n
g
-

fo
rw

a
rd
 

d
a
te
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 t
a
k
e
n
 

th
e
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
 o
f 

th
e
ir
 v
ie
w
s
, 
a
s
 

w
ill
 b
e
 m

a
d
e
 t
o
 

th
e
 P
C
T
 

B
o
a
rd
, 
is
 a
ls
o
 

m
a
d
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

H
O
S
C
, 
a
t 
th
e
 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 

ti
m
e
.”
 

Page 25



Page 26

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32

This page is intentionally left blank



08/so/hosc/050908/Item 5 – Working Group  

By:  Overview, Scrutiny and Localism Manager 
 
To:  Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee – Friday 9 May 2008  
 
Subject: Working Group – Healthcare Commission Core Standards 
 

 
Introduction  
 
1. (1) At the Committee’s last meeting, consideration was given to three 
of the declarations by Trusts against the Healthcare Commission Core 
Standards for the period 1 April 2007 to 31 March 2008. 
 
 (2) The draft minutes of the last meeting, to be approved by the 
Committee today, were sent to each of the Trusts concerned, for inclusion in 
their declarations – which had to be with the Healthcare Commission by 
Midday on Wednesday 30 April 2008. 
 
Remaining Trusts 
2. (1) No firm decision was taken at the meeting on 28 March 2008 for 
dealing with the remaining Trusts. I therefore sought the views of the 
Chairman. 
 
 (2) The Chairman suggested that a small group should be convened 
to consider the remaining Trusts’ declarations. An informal Working Group, 
comprising Dr Robinson (substituting for Lord Bruce-Lockhart), Mr Marsh, Mr 
Fittock and Mr Daley, met on Friday 25 April 2008. 
 
 (3) The Working Group concluded that it did not have any 
substantive evidence that would enable it to submit, on behalf of the 
Committee, useful third-party commentaries that could add value to the 
Healthcare Commission’s Annual Health Check process.  However, the 
Working Group did feel that the exercise had been extremely useful in 
providing the Committee with a baseline, against which evidence can be 
gathered on an ongoing basis by the Committee throughout the forthcoming 
year, enabling third-party commentaries to be made by the Committee in April 
2009. 
 
 (4) Attached as an Appendix is a table which sets out the information 
gleaned by the Working Group. I have also extracted similar information from 
the minutes of the meeting which looked at three of the Trusts’ declarations 
on 28 March 2008; the table containing this is attached too. These documents 
will form the basis of a database against which the questions will be asked by 
the Committee on the Core Standards as they engage with Trusts throughout 
the year. 
 
Working Group 
3. (1) The Working Group covered much in a short space of time (six 
Trusts were seen in two-and-a-half hours).  If work is to be conducted by 
small groups of Members, those Members could have the opportunity to 

Agenda Item 5

Page 33



08/so/hosc/050908/Item 5 – Working Group  

become very knowledgeable on specific areas. However, it is important that 
information from small groups is widely disseminated among other Members 
of the Committee/Council. 
 
 (2)  The transparency of the work of the Committee is fundamental 
and so it needs to take place in public. 
 
 (3) Significant working in this way will require additional resources if 
it is to be sustainable. 
 
 

Recommendations 
 
4. The Committee is asked to: 
 
 (a) Retrospectively agree to the setting up of the Working Group that 
considered the self-declarations of the six remaining Trusts on 25 April 2008; 
and 
 
 (b) note the information set out in the Appendix. 
 

 
 

Page 34



H
e
a
lt
h
 O
v
e
rv
ie
w
 a
n
d
 S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 

W
o
rk
in
g
 G
ro
u
p
 o
n
 H
e
a
lt
h
c
a
re
 C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
 C
o
re
 S
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 

2
5
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
0
8
 

 T
ru
s
t 

C
o
re
 S
ta
n
d
a
rd
 d
is
c
u
s
s
e
d
 

D
e
c
la
ra
ti
o
n
 

In
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 g
le
a
n
e
d
 

C
4
e
 H
e
a
lt
h
 c
a
re
 

o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 k
e
e
p
 p
a
ti
e
n
ts
, 

s
ta
ff
 a
n
d
 v
is
it
o
rs
 s
a
fe
 b
y
 

h
a
v
in
g
 s
y
s
te
m
s
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 

th
a
t 
th
e
 p
re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
, 

s
e
g
re
g
a
ti
o
n
, 
h
a
n
d
lin
g
, 

tr
a
n
s
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 d
is
p
o
s
a
l 
o
f 

w
a
s
te
 i
s
 p
ro
p
e
rl
y
 m
a
n
a
g
e
d
 

s
o
 a
s
 t
o
 m
in
im
is
e
 t
h
e
 r
is
k
s
 t
o
 

th
e
 h
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 s
a
fe
ty
 o
f 
s
ta
ff
, 

p
a
ti
e
n
ts
, 
th
e
 p
u
b
lic
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 

s
a
fe
ty
 o
f 
th
e
 e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t.
 

N
o
t 
M
e
t 

C
h
a
n
g
e
s
 i
n
 r
e
g
u
la
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 c
lin
ic
a
l 
p
ra
c
ti
c
e
 m

e
a
n
 t
h
a
t 
m
o
re
 c
lin
ic
a
l 

w
a
s
te
 i
s
 b
e
in
g
 g
e
n
e
ra
te
d
, 
s
e
g
re
g
a
te
d
 i
n
to
 m

o
re
 w
a
s
te
 s
tr
e
a
m
s
. 
T
h
e
 

F
o
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 T
ru
s
t 
is
 d
e
c
la
ri
n
g
 i
ts
e
lf
 N
o
t 
M
e
t,
 d
u
e
 t
o
 s
y
s
te
m
 f
a
ilu
re
s
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
A
g
e
n
c
y
 i
n
 N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
7
. 
T
h
e
s
e
 

fa
ilu
re
s
 a
re
 m

a
in
ly
 a
b
o
u
t 
fl
a
w
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 a
u
d
it
 t
ra
ils
 

(c
o
n
s
ig
n
m
e
n
t 
n
o
ti
c
e
s
) 
o
n
 t
h
e
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 w
a
s
te
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

c
o
n
tr
a
c
to
rs
. 
T
h
e
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
is
 h
e
ld
 b
y
 a
 c
o
n
s
o
rt
iu
m
 o
f 
a
ll 
tr
u
s
ts
 i
n
 K
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 M

e
d
w
a
y
. 
T
h
is
 p
ro
b
le
m
 a
ff
e
c
ts
 a
ll 
o
th
e
r 
tr
u
s
ts
, 
a
s
 m

e
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
th
e
 

w
a
s
te
 c
o
n
s
o
rt
iu
m
; 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 f
a
u
lt
 i
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 

c
o
n
tr
a
c
to
r,
 r
a
th
e
r 
th
a
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 F
o
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 T
ru
s
t 
it
s
e
lf
. 
W
h
ile
 t
h
e
 

F
o
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 T
ru
s
t 
is
 d
e
c
la
ri
n
g
 i
ts
e
lf
 N
o
t 
M
e
t 
a
g
a
in
s
t 
C
4
e
 f
o
r 
th
e
 t
h
ir
d
 

y
e
a
r 
ru
n
n
in
g
, 
th
is
 i
s
 d
o
w
n
 t
o
 a
 r
a
n
g
e
 o
f 
is
s
u
e
s
, 
e
a
c
h
 o
f 
w
h
ic
h
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 

re
s
o
lv
e
d
 i
n
 t
u
rn
. 

M
e
d
w
a
y
 F
o
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 T
ru
s
t 

(A
n
d
y
 H
o
rn
e
, 
C
h
ie
f 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
; 
H
e
le
n
 G
o
o
d
w
in
, 

H
e
a
d
 o
f 
G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
) 

C
4
c
 H
e
a
lt
h
 c
a
re
 

o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 k
e
e
p
 p
a
ti
e
n
ts
, 

s
ta
ff
 a
n
d
 v
is
it
o
rs
 s
a
fe
 b
y
 

h
a
v
in
g
 s
y
s
te
m
s
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 

th
a
t 
a
ll 
re
u
s
a
b
le
 m
e
d
ic
a
l 

d
e
v
ic
e
s
 a
re
 p
ro
p
e
rl
y
 

d
e
c
o
n
ta
m
in
a
te
d
 p
ri
o
r 
to
 u
s
e
 

a
n
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 r
is
k
s
 a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
d
 

w
it
h
 d
e
c
o
n
ta
m
in
a
ti
o
n
 

fa
c
ili
ti
e
s
 a
n
d
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 a
re
 

w
e
ll 
m
a
n
a
g
e
d
. 

N
o
t 
M
e
t 

T
h
e
 F
o
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 T
ru
s
t 
is
 d
e
c
la
ri
n
g
 i
ts
e
lf
 N
o
t 
M
e
t 
d
u
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 d
e
la
y
e
d
 

in
tr
o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
a
 c
e
n
tr
a
lis
e
d
 c
o
ld
 s
te
ri
lis
a
ti
o
n
 u
n
it
. 
T
h
e
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 
c
lin
ic
a
l 

a
c
ti
v
it
y
 i
s
 r
is
in
g
, 
n
e
c
e
s
s
it
a
ti
n
g
 m

o
re
 f
a
c
ili
ti
e
s
. 
T
h
e
 u
n
it
 w
ill
 b
e
 i
n
s
ta
lle
d
 

a
n
d
, 
in
 t
h
e
 m

e
a
n
ti
m
e
, 
ri
g
id
 e
n
d
o
s
c
o
p
e
s
 a
re
 b
e
in
g
 u
s
e
d
 f
o
r 

g
y
n
a
e
c
o
lo
g
ic
a
l 
in
v
e
s
ti
g
a
ti
o
n
s
. 
£
7
0
0
,0
0
0
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 i
n
v
e
s
te
d
 i
n
 

e
q
u
ip
m
e
n
t 
fo
r 
th
e
 n
e
w
 u
n
it
. 

Page 35



T
ru
s
t 

C
o
re
 S
ta
n
d
a
rd
 d
is
c
u
s
s
e
d
 

D
e
c
la
ra
ti
o
n
 

In
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 g
le
a
n
e
d
 

C
4
a
 H
e
a
lt
h
 c
a
re
 

o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 k
e
e
p
 p
a
ti
e
n
ts
, 

s
ta
ff
 a
n
d
 v
is
it
o
rs
 s
a
fe
 b
y
 

h
a
v
in
g
 s
y
s
te
m
s
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 

th
a
t 
th
e
 r
is
k
 o
f 
h
e
a
lt
h
 c
a
re
 

a
c
q
u
ir
e
d
 i
n
fe
c
ti
o
n
 t
o
 p
a
ti
e
n
ts
 

is
 r
e
d
u
c
e
d
, 
w
it
h
 p
a
rt
ic
u
la
r 

e
m
p
h
a
s
is
 o
n
 h
ig
h
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 

o
f 
h
y
g
ie
n
e
 a
n
d
 c
le
a
n
lin
e
s
s
, 

a
c
h
ie
v
in
g
 y
e
a
r-
o
n
-y
e
a
r 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 M
R
S
A
. 

C
o
m
p
lia
n
t 

T
h
e
 F
o
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 T
ru
s
t 
is
 d
e
c
la
ri
n
g
 i
ts
e
lf
 C
o
m
p
lia
n
t,
 h
a
v
in
g
 m

e
t 
th
e
 

s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 s
e
t 
o
u
t 
in
 t
h
e
 H
y
g
ie
n
e
 C
o
d
e
. 
T
h
e
 F
o
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 T
ru
s
t 
is
 

p
la
n
n
in
g
 t
o
 r
e
d
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
ll 
it
s
 m

e
d
ic
a
l 
w
a
rd
s
, 
w
h
ic
h
 w
ill
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 b
e
d
 

c
a
p
a
c
it
y
, 
th
e
re
b
y
 h
e
lp
in
g
 t
o
 i
s
o
la
te
 o
u
tb
re
a
k
s
 o
f 
in
fe
c
ti
o
n
. 
S
c
re
e
n
in
g
 o
f 

p
a
ti
e
n
ts
 f
o
r 
M
R
S
A
 i
s
 b
e
in
g
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
, 
a
n
d
 e
le
c
ti
v
e
 a
n
d
 e
m
e
rg
e
n
c
y
 

p
a
ti
e
n
ts
 a
re
 b
e
in
g
 s
e
p
a
ra
te
d
. 

C
9
 H
e
a
lt
h
 c
a
re
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 

h
a
v
e
 a
 s
y
s
te
m
a
ti
c
 a
n
d
 

p
la
n
n
e
d
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
re
c
o
rd
s
 t
o
 

e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t,
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 

m
o
m
e
n
t 
a
 r
e
c
o
rd
 i
s
 c
re
a
te
d
 

u
n
ti
l 
it
s
 u
lt
im
a
te
 d
is
p
o
s
a
l,
 t
h
e
 

o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
 m
a
in
ta
in
s
 

in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 s
o
 t
h
a
t 
it
 s
e
rv
e
s
 

th
e
 p
u
rp
o
s
e
 i
t 
w
a
s
 c
o
lle
c
te
d
 

fo
r 
a
n
d
 d
is
p
o
s
e
s
 o
f 
th
e
 

in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
ly
 

w
h
e
n
 n
o
 l
o
n
g
e
r 
re
q
u
ir
e
d
. 

C
o
m
p
lia
n
t 

T
h
e
 F
o
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 T
ru
s
t 
is
 d
e
c
la
ri
n
g
 i
ts
e
lf
 C
o
m
p
lia
n
t,
 b
u
t 
th
e
re
 a
re
 

c
o
n
c
e
rn
s
 a
b
o
u
t 
th
e
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 p
a
p
e
r 
u
n
if
ie
d
 h
e
a
lt
h
c
a
re
 r
e
c
o
rd
 

a
n
d
 o
th
e
r 
m
a
tt
e
rs
. 
T
h
e
re
 a
re
 b
ig
 p
la
n
s
 f
o
r 
th
e
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
re
c
o
rd
s
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t,
 i
n
v
o
lv
in
g
 t
ra
n
s
fe
r 
to
 a
n
 o
ff
-s
it
e
 l
o
c
a
ti
o
n
. 
T
h
e
 F
o
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 

T
ru
s
t 
h
a
s
 a
 m

e
d
iu
m
-t
e
rm

 p
la
n
 (
w
it
h
in
 f
iv
e
 t
o
 1
0
 y
e
a
rs
) 
to
 g
o
 o
v
e
r 
to
 a
n
 

e
le
c
tr
o
n
ic
 r
e
c
o
rd
s
 s
y
s
te
m
. 
A
ll 
in
c
id
e
n
ts
 i
n
v
o
lv
in
g
 l
o
s
s
 o
f 
d
a
ta
 o
r 
b
re
a
c
h
 

o
f 
p
a
ti
e
n
t 
c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
ti
a
lit
y
 a
re
 c
a
p
tu
re
d
 b
y
 a
n
 i
n
c
id
e
n
t-
lo
g
g
in
g
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 

a
n
d
 a
n
 a
u
d
it
 i
s
 c
o
n
d
u
c
te
d
. 

W
e
s
t 
K
e
n
t 
P
C
T
 (
M
o
ll
y
 C
la
rk
, 

P
ro
je
c
t 
M
a
n
a
g
e
r 
fo
r 

G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
; 
A
n
n
e
 C
a
rr
o
ll,
 

A
s
s
is
ta
n
t 
D
ir
e
c
to
r,
 C
lin
ic
a
l 

G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
) 

C
7
e
 H
e
a
lt
h
 c
a
re
 

o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 c
h
a
lle
n
g
e
 

d
is
c
ri
m
in
a
ti
o
n
, 
p
ro
m
o
te
 

e
q
u
a
lit
y
 a
n
d
 r
e
s
p
e
c
t 
h
u
m
a
n
 

ri
g
h
ts
. 

N
o
t 
M
e
t 

A
 p
o
lic
y
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 f
o
rm

u
la
te
d
 c
o
v
e
ri
n
g
 b
o
th
 t
h
e
s
e
 C
o
re
 S
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
, 
b
u
t 

it
 h
a
s
 y
e
t 
to
 b
e
 f
in
a
lis
e
d
. 
A
 c
o
n
fe
re
n
c
e
 f
o
r 
th
is
 p
u
rp
o
s
e
 i
s
 b
e
in
g
 h
e
ld
 o
n
 

1
6
 J
u
n
e
 2
0
0
8
. 

Page 36



T
ru
s
t 

C
o
re
 S
ta
n
d
a
rd
 d
is
c
u
s
s
e
d
 

D
e
c
la
ra
ti
o
n
 

In
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 g
le
a
n
e
d
 

C
1
8
 H
e
a
lt
h
 c
a
re
 

o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 e
n
a
b
le
 a
ll 

m
e
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
th
e
 p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 e
q
u
a
lly
 a
n
d
 

o
ff
e
r 
c
h
o
ic
e
 i
n
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 t
re
a
tm
e
n
t 

e
q
u
it
a
b
ly
. 

N
o
t 
M
e
t 

T
h
e
 P
a
ti
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 P
u
b
lic
 I
n
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t 
F
o
ru
m
 f
o
r 
th
e
 P
C
T
 r
a
is
e
d
 

c
o
n
c
e
rn
s
 a
b
o
u
t 
th
e
 i
n
a
d
e
q
u
a
c
y
 o
f 
d
e
n
ta
l 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 w
h
o
le
 o
f 

th
e
 W

e
s
t 
K
e
n
t 
a
re
a
, 
a
s
 w
e
ll 
a
s
 i
n
e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 i
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 w
it
h
in
 

th
e
 a
re
a
. 

 T
h
e
 F
o
ru
m
 a
ls
o
 v
is
it
e
d
 L
iv
in
g
s
to
n
e
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 H
o
s
p
it
a
l 
a
t 
D
a
rt
fo
rd
 

a
n
d
 n
o
te
d
 t
h
e
 l
a
c
k
 o
f 
w
ri
tt
e
n
 m

a
te
ri
a
l 
in
 e
th
n
ic
 m

in
o
ri
ty
 l
a
n
g
u
a
g
e
s
, 
a
s
 

w
e
ll 
a
s
 t
h
e
 l
a
c
k
 o
f 
tr
a
n
s
la
ti
o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 f
o
r 
p
a
ti
e
n
ts
 w
h
o
 d
id
 n
o
t 
h
a
v
e
 a
 

g
o
o
d
 u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
 o
f 
E
n
g
lis
h
. 

C
2
3
 H
e
a
lt
h
 c
a
re
 

o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 h
a
v
e
 

s
y
s
te
m
a
ti
c
 a
n
d
 m
a
n
a
g
e
d
 

d
is
e
a
s
e
 p
re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 

h
e
a
lt
h
 p
ro
m
o
ti
o
n
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
 w
h
ic
h
 m
e
e
t 
th
e
 

re
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
 o
f 
th
e
 N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 F
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
s
 a
n
d
 

n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
p
la
n
s
 w
it
h
 p
a
rt
ic
u
la
r 

re
g
a
rd
 t
o
 r
e
d
u
c
in
g
 o
b
e
s
it
y
 

th
ro
u
g
h
 a
c
ti
o
n
 o
n
 n
u
tr
it
io
n
 

a
n
d
 e
x
e
rc
is
e
, 
s
m
o
k
in
g
, 

s
u
b
s
ta
n
c
e
 m
is
u
s
e
 a
n
d
 

s
e
x
u
a
lly
 t
ra
n
s
m
it
te
d
 

in
fe
c
ti
o
n
s
. 

N
o
t 
M
e
t 

A
n
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 
re
v
ie
w
 h
a
s
 r
e
v
e
a
le
d
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
la
p
s
e
s
 i
n
 r
e
s
p
e
c
t 
o
f 
s
e
x
u
a
l 

h
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 s
m
o
k
in
g
. 
A
 n
e
w
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
 a
n
d
 a
c
ti
o
n
 p
la
n
 a
re
 b
e
in
g
 p
u
t 
in
 

p
la
c
e
. 

C
5
c
 H
e
a
lt
h
c
a
re
 

o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 

c
lin
ic
ia
n
s
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
o
u
s
ly
 

u
p
d
a
te
 s
k
ill
s
 a
n
d
 t
e
c
h
n
iq
u
e
s
 

re
le
v
a
n
t 
to
 t
h
e
ir
 c
lin
ic
a
l 
w
o
rk
. 

In
s
u
ff
ic
ie
n
t 
A
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 

T
h
e
 P
C
T
 b
e
lie
v
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
th
is
 u
p
d
a
ti
n
g
 o
f 
s
k
ill
s
 a
n
d
 t
e
c
h
n
iq
u
e
s
 i
s
 

p
ro
b
a
b
ly
 h
a
p
p
e
n
in
g
, 
b
u
t 
th
e
re
 i
s
 a
 l
a
c
k
 o
f 
e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 t
o
 s
h
o
w
 t
h
is
. 
A
 

n
e
w
 s
o
ft
w
a
re
 s
y
s
te
m
 i
s
 b
e
in
g
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 t
h
a
t 
w
ill
 a
llo
w
 m

a
n
a
g
e
rs
 t
o
 

m
a
p
 s
ta
ff
 t
ra
in
in
g
 a
n
d
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 a
re
a
s
 n
e
e
d
in
g
 a
tt
e
n
ti
o
n
. 
A
 s
ta
ff
 s
k
ill
s
 

a
u
d
it
 a
n
d
 t
ra
in
in
g
 n
e
e
d
s
 a
n
a
ly
s
is
 h
a
v
e
 t
a
k
e
n
 p
la
c
e
. 
C
lin
ic
a
l 
s
ta
ff
 h
a
v
e
 

a
 p
ro
fe
s
s
io
n
a
l 
re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ty
 t
o
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
in
g
 p
ro
fe
s
s
io
n
a
l 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t.
 T
h
e
 Q
u
a
lit
y
 a
n
d
 O
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 F
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 r
e
v
ie
w
 s
h
o
u
ld
 

p
ic
k
 u
p
 s
h
o
rt
c
o
m
in
g
s
 i
n
 G
P
 p
ra
c
ti
c
e
s
. 

Page 37



T
ru
s
t 

C
o
re
 S
ta
n
d
a
rd
 d
is
c
u
s
s
e
d
 

D
e
c
la
ra
ti
o
n
 

In
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 g
le
a
n
e
d
 

C
8
b
 H
e
a
lt
h
 c
a
re
 

o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
ir
 

s
ta
ff
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

a
n
d
 p
e
rs
o
n
a
l 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
 w
h
ic
h
 r
e
c
o
g
n
is
e
 

th
e
 c
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 v
a
lu
e
 o
f 

s
ta
ff
, 
a
n
d
 a
d
d
re
s
s
, 
w
h
e
re
 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
, 
u
n
d
e
r-

re
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 
m
in
o
ri
ty
 

g
ro
u
p
s
. 

In
s
u
ff
ic
ie
n
t 
A
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 

 

C
9
 H
e
a
lt
h
 c
a
re
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 

h
a
v
e
 a
 s
y
s
te
m
a
ti
c
 a
n
d
 

p
la
n
n
e
d
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
re
c
o
rd
s
 t
o
 

e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t,
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 

m
o
m
e
n
t 
a
 r
e
c
o
rd
 i
s
 c
re
a
te
d
 

u
n
ti
l 
it
s
 u
lt
im
a
te
 d
is
p
o
s
a
l,
 t
h
e
 

o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
 m
a
in
ta
in
s
 

in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 s
o
 t
h
a
t 
it
 s
e
rv
e
s
 

th
e
 p
u
rp
o
s
e
 i
t 
w
a
s
 c
o
lle
c
te
d
 

fo
r 
a
n
d
 d
is
p
o
s
e
s
 o
f 
th
e
 

in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
ly
 

w
h
e
n
 n
o
 l
o
n
g
e
r 
re
q
u
ir
e
d
. 

In
s
u
ff
ic
ie
n
t 
A
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 

T
h
e
 P
C
T
 h
a
s
 h
a
d
 t
o
 w
o
rk
 t
o
 m

a
k
e
 r
e
c
o
rd
s
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
p
o
lic
y
 

c
o
n
s
is
te
n
t,
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 t
h
e
 m

e
rg
e
r 
in
 2
0
0
6
 o
f 
it
s
 t
h
re
e
 p
re
d
e
c
e
s
s
o
r 
P
C
T
s
, 

w
h
ic
h
 h
a
d
 v
a
ry
in
g
 p
o
lic
ie
s
. 

C
1
3
c
 H
e
a
lt
h
 c
a
re
 

o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 h
a
v
e
 s
y
s
te
m
s
 

in
 p
la
c
e
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
s
ta
ff
 

tr
e
a
t 
p
a
ti
e
n
t 
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 

c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
ti
a
lly
, 
e
x
c
e
p
t 
w
h
e
re
 

a
u
th
o
ri
s
e
d
 b
y
 l
e
g
is
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 

th
e
 c
o
n
tr
a
ry
. 

In
s
u
ff
ic
ie
n
t 
A
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 

 

Page 38



T
ru
s
t 

C
o
re
 S
ta
n
d
a
rd
 d
is
c
u
s
s
e
d
 

D
e
c
la
ra
ti
o
n
 

In
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 g
le
a
n
e
d
 

C
4
a
 H
e
a
lt
h
 c
a
re
 

o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 k
e
e
p
 p
a
ti
e
n
ts
, 

s
ta
ff
 a
n
d
 v
is
it
o
rs
 s
a
fe
 b
y
 

h
a
v
in
g
 s
y
s
te
m
s
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 

th
a
t 
th
e
 r
is
k
 o
f 
h
e
a
lt
h
 c
a
re
 

a
c
q
u
ir
e
d
 i
n
fe
c
ti
o
n
 t
o
 p
a
ti
e
n
ts
 

is
 r
e
d
u
c
e
d
, 
w
it
h
 p
a
rt
ic
u
la
r 

e
m
p
h
a
s
is
 o
n
 h
ig
h
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 

o
f 
h
y
g
ie
n
e
 a
n
d
 c
le
a
n
lin
e
s
s
, 

a
c
h
ie
v
in
g
 y
e
a
r-
o
n
-y
e
a
r 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 M
R
S
A
. 

C
o
m
p
lia
n
t 

T
h
e
 P
C
T
 h
a
s
 t
h
re
e
 l
o
c
a
lit
y
-b
a
s
e
d
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 i
n
fe
c
ti
o
n
 c
o
n
tr
o
l 
n
u
rs
e
s
, 

w
h
o
 w
o
rk
 w
it
h
 c
a
re
 h
o
m
e
s
 a
n
d
 p
ri
m
a
ry
 c
a
re
 p
ra
c
ti
ti
o
n
e
rs
. 
A
 r
o
o
t 

c
a
u
s
e
 a
n
a
ly
s
is
 i
s
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 w
h
e
n
e
v
e
r 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
-a
c
q
u
ir
e
d
 

C
lo
s
tr
id
iu
m
 d
if
fi
c
ile
 i
s
 p
re
s
e
n
t 
in
 a
 p
a
ti
e
n
t 
a
d
m
it
te
d
 t
o
 h
o
s
p
it
a
l.
 M

o
n
th
ly
 

s
u
rv
e
ill
a
n
c
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
s
 a
re
 p
ro
d
u
c
e
d
 a
n
d
 a
 p
o
s
tc
o
d
e
 a
n
a
ly
s
is
 o
f 
p
a
tt
e
rn
s
 

is
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
. 
A
d
v
ic
e
 i
s
 g
iv
e
n
 t
o
 G
P
s
 o
n
 m

ic
ro
b
io
lo
g
ic
a
l 
a
n
a
ly
s
is
 a
n
d
 

th
e
 e
x
c
e
s
s
iv
e
 u
s
e
 o
f 
a
n
ti
b
io
ti
c
s
 i
s
 d
is
c
o
u
ra
g
e
d
. 
T
h
e
 P
C
T
 a
tt
e
n
d
s
 a
c
u
te
 

T
ru
s
ts
’ 
in
fe
c
ti
o
n
 c
o
n
tr
o
l 
m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
. 

C
5
b
 H
e
a
lt
h
 c
a
re
 

o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 

c
lin
ic
a
l 
c
a
re
 a
n
d
 t
re
a
tm
e
n
t 

a
re
 c
a
rr
ie
d
 o
u
t 
u
n
d
e
r 

s
u
p
e
rv
is
io
n
 a
n
d
 l
e
a
d
e
rs
h
ip
. 

In
s
u
ff
ic
ie
n
t 
A
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 

T
h
is
 C
o
re
 S
ta
n
d
a
rd
 i
s
 n
o
t 
e
n
ti
re
ly
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 t
o
 A
m
b
u
la
n
c
e
 T
ru
s
ts
, 

g
iv
e
n
 t
h
e
 w
a
y
 i
n
 w
h
ic
h
 t
h
e
ir
 s
ta
ff
 w
o
rk
. 
S
y
s
te
m
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 p
u
t 
in
 

p
la
c
e
 s
in
c
e
 t
h
e
 c
re
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 T
ru
s
t 
in
 2
0
0
6
, 
b
u
t 
th
e
y
 a
re
 s
ti
ll 
n
o
t 
fu
lly
 

e
m
b
e
d
d
e
d
. 
A
 t
ra
d
it
io
n
a
l 
a
p
p
re
n
ti
c
e
-s
ty
le
 t
ra
in
in
g
 m

o
d
e
l 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 

re
p
la
c
e
d
 b
y
 a
 d
e
g
re
e
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 b
a
s
e
d
 i
n
 k
e
y
 s
k
ill
s
 a
n
d
 

c
o
m
p
e
te
n
c
ie
s
. 
C
lin
ic
a
l 
s
ta
ff
 a
re
 n
o
w
 r
e
g
is
te
re
d
 h
e
a
lt
h
c
a
re
 

p
ro
fe
s
s
io
n
a
ls
 a
n
d
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t
o
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
in
g
 p
ro
fe
s
s
io
n
a
l 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t.
 C
o
n
tr
o
l 
ro
o
m
 s
ta
ff
 d
o
 n
o
t 
n
e
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
 t
ra
in
e
d
 c
lin
ic
ia
n
s
; 

b
u
t 
th
e
y
 a
re
 a
ll 
tr
a
in
e
d
 a
n
d
 h
a
v
e
 s
o
m
e
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 
c
lin
ic
a
l 
k
n
o
w
le
d
g
e
. 

S
o
u
th
 E
a
s
t 
C
o
a
s
t 

A
m
b
u
la
n
c
e
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 N
H
S
 

T
ru
s
t 
(A
n
d
y
 C
a
s
h
m
a
n
, 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r)
 

C
4
a
 H
e
a
lt
h
 c
a
re
 

o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 k
e
e
p
 p
a
ti
e
n
ts
, 

s
ta
ff
 a
n
d
 v
is
it
o
rs
 s
a
fe
 b
y
 

h
a
v
in
g
 s
y
s
te
m
s
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 

th
a
t 
th
e
 r
is
k
 o
f 
h
e
a
lt
h
 c
a
re
 

a
c
q
u
ir
e
d
 i
n
fe
c
ti
o
n
 t
o
 p
a
ti
e
n
ts
 

is
 r
e
d
u
c
e
d
, 
w
it
h
 p
a
rt
ic
u
la
r 

e
m
p
h
a
s
is
 o
n
 h
ig
h
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 

o
f 
h
y
g
ie
n
e
 a
n
d
 c
le
a
n
lin
e
s
s
, 

a
c
h
ie
v
in
g
 y
e
a
r-
o
n
-y
e
a
r 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 M
R
S
A
. 

C
o
m
p
lia
n
t 

A
m
b
u
la
n
c
e
s
 a
re
 n
o
w
 c
le
a
n
e
d
 a
n
d
 p
re
p
a
re
d
 i
n
 “
M
a
k
e
 r
e
a
d
y
 c
e
n
tr
e
s
” 

b
y
 d
e
d
ic
a
te
d
 t
e
a
m
s
. 
C
lin
ic
ia
n
s
 d
o
, 
th
o
u
g
h
, 
s
ti
ll 
h
a
v
e
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ty
 f
o
r 

ru
b
b
in
g
 d
o
w
n
 h
a
rd
 s
u
rf
a
c
e
s
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 p
a
ti
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 m

a
in
ta
in
in
g
 g
o
o
d
 

in
fe
c
ti
o
n
 c
o
n
tr
o
l 
p
ra
c
ti
c
e
s
. 
A
ll 
in
v
a
s
iv
e
 e
q
u
ip
m
e
n
t 
(s
u
c
h
 a
s
 n
e
e
d
le
s
) 
is
 

s
in
g
le
-u
s
e
. 
D
is
p
o
s
a
b
le
 l
in
e
n
 i
s
 u
s
e
d
. 

Page 39



T
ru
s
t 

C
o
re
 S
ta
n
d
a
rd
 d
is
c
u
s
s
e
d
 

D
e
c
la
ra
ti
o
n
 

In
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 g
le
a
n
e
d
 

C
7
e
 H
e
a
lt
h
 c
a
re
 

o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 c
h
a
lle
n
g
e
 

d
is
c
ri
m
in
a
ti
o
n
, 
p
ro
m
o
te
 

e
q
u
a
lit
y
 a
n
d
 r
e
s
p
e
c
t 
h
u
m
a
n
 

ri
g
h
ts
. 

In
s
u
ff
ic
ie
n
t 
A
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 

T
h
e
 T
ru
s
t 
e
m
p
lo
y
s
 a
 m

e
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
s
ta
ff
 f
o
r 
e
x
te
rn
a
l 
lia
is
o
n
 o
n
 e
q
u
a
lit
y
 

a
n
d
 d
iv
e
rs
it
y
 i
s
s
u
e
s
, 
b
u
t 
th
a
t 
m
e
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
s
ta
ff
 w
a
s
 n
o
t 
in
 p
la
c
e
 

th
ro
u
g
h
o
u
t 
th
e
 y
e
a
r.
 

C
7
e
 H
e
a
lt
h
 c
a
re
 

o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 c
h
a
lle
n
g
e
 

d
is
c
ri
m
in
a
ti
o
n
, 
p
ro
m
o
te
 

e
q
u
a
lit
y
 a
n
d
 r
e
s
p
e
c
t 
h
u
m
a
n
 

ri
g
h
ts
. 

N
o
t 
M
e
t 

T
h
e
 T
ru
s
t 
w
ill
 i
n
 f
u
tu
re
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
ra
c
e
 e
q
u
a
lit
y
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
ts
 

a
re
 c
o
n
d
u
c
te
d
 a
n
d
 p
u
b
lis
h
e
d
 i
n
 r
e
s
p
e
c
t 
o
f 
it
s
 p
o
lic
ie
s
. 

C
8
b
 H
e
a
lt
h
 c
a
re
 

o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
ir
 

s
ta
ff
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

a
n
d
 p
e
rs
o
n
a
l 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
 w
h
ic
h
 r
e
c
o
g
n
is
e
 

th
e
 c
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 v
a
lu
e
 o
f 

s
ta
ff
, 
a
n
d
 a
d
d
re
s
s
, 
w
h
e
re
 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
, 
u
n
d
e
r-

re
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 
m
in
o
ri
ty
 

g
ro
u
p
s
. 

N
o
t 
M
e
t 

T
h
e
 T
ru
s
t 
w
ill
 i
n
 f
u
tu
re
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
t 
p
o
lic
ie
s
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
s
ta
ff
 f
ro
m
 

b
la
c
k
 a
n
d
 m

in
o
ri
ty
 e
th
n
ic
 g
ro
u
p
s
 h
a
v
e
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 f
o
r 
p
e
rs
o
n
a
l 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
–
 t
a
rg
e
te
d
 w
h
e
re
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
. 

K
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 M

e
d
w
a
y
 N
H
S
 a
n
d
 

S
o
c
ia
l 
C
a
re
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

T
ru
s
t 
(E
rv
ill
e
 M

ill
a
r,
 C
h
ie
f 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
) 

C
1
6
 H
e
a
lt
h
 c
a
re
 

o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 m
a
k
e
 

in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 t
o
 

p
a
ti
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 p
u
b
lic
 o
n
 

th
e
ir
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 
p
ro
v
id
e
 

p
a
ti
e
n
ts
 w
it
h
 s
u
it
a
b
le
 a
n
d
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
ib
le
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 o
n
 t
h
e
 

c
a
re
 a
n
d
 t
re
a
tm
e
n
t 
th
e
y
 

re
c
e
iv
e
 a
n
d
, 
w
h
e
re
 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
, 
in
fo
rm
 p
a
ti
e
n
ts
 

o
n
 w
h
a
t 
to
 e
x
p
e
c
t 
d
u
ri
n
g
 

tr
e
a
tm
e
n
t,
 c
a
re
 a
n
d
 a
ft
e
r-

c
a
re
. 

N
o
t 
M
e
t 

T
h
e
 T
ru
s
t 
a
lr
e
a
d
y
 p
ro
v
id
e
s
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
p
a
ti
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 p
u
b
lic
 i
n
 

fi
v
e
 l
a
n
g
u
a
g
e
s
, 
b
u
t 
it
 w
ill
 n
e
e
d
 i
n
 f
u
tu
re
 t
o
 u
s
e
 a
 b
ro
a
d
e
r 
ra
n
g
e
 o
f 

la
n
g
u
a
g
e
s
 a
n
d
 m

a
k
e
 t
h
e
 m

a
te
ri
a
l 
m
o
re
 r
e
a
d
il
y
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
. 

Page 40



T
ru
s
t 

C
o
re
 S
ta
n
d
a
rd
 d
is
c
u
s
s
e
d
 

D
e
c
la
ra
ti
o
n
 

In
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 g
le
a
n
e
d
 

C
1
7
 T
h
e
 v
ie
w
s
 o
f 
p
a
ti
e
n
ts
, 

th
e
ir
 c
a
re
rs
 a
n
d
 o
th
e
rs
 a
re
 

s
o
u
g
h
t 
a
n
d
 t
a
k
e
n
 i
n
to
 

a
c
c
o
u
n
t 
in
 d
e
s
ig
n
in
g
, 

p
la
n
n
in
g
, 
d
e
liv
e
ri
n
g
 a
n
d
 

im
p
ro
v
in
g
 h
e
a
lt
h
 c
a
re
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 

N
o
t 
M
e
t 

T
h
e
 T
ru
s
t 
w
ill
 n
e
e
d
 i
n
 f
u
tu
re
 t
o
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 g
o
o
d
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 t
o
 s
h
o
w
 t
h
a
t 
it
 

in
v
o
lv
e
s
 a
n
d
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
s
 a
 w
id
e
 r
a
n
g
e
 o
f 
g
ro
u
p
s
, 
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 m

e
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 

b
la
c
k
 a
n
d
 m

in
o
ri
ty
 e
th
n
ic
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
, 
re
g
a
rd
in
g
 t
h
e
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 o
f 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 

C
1
8
 H
e
a
lt
h
 c
a
re
 

o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 e
n
a
b
le
 a
ll 

m
e
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
th
e
 p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 e
q
u
a
lly
 a
n
d
 

o
ff
e
r 
c
h
o
ic
e
 i
n
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 t
re
a
tm
e
n
t 

e
q
u
it
a
b
ly
. 

N
o
t 
M
e
t 

T
h
e
 T
ru
s
t 
n
e
e
d
s
 t
o
 d
o
 m

o
re
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 r
e
a
d
ily
 

a
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
o
r 
a
ll 
s
e
c
ti
o
n
s
 o
f 
th
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 t
o
 a
llo
w
 t
h
e
m
 t
o
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 e
a
s
ily
. 

C
1
a
 H
e
a
lt
h
 c
a
re
 

o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 p
ro
te
c
t 
p
a
ti
e
n
ts
 

th
ro
u
g
h
 s
y
s
te
m
s
 t
h
a
t 
id
e
n
ti
fy
 

a
n
d
 l
e
a
rn
 f
ro
m
 a
ll 
p
a
ti
e
n
t 

s
a
fe
ty
 i
n
c
id
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 o
th
e
r 

re
p
o
rt
a
b
le
 i
n
c
id
e
n
ts
, 
a
n
d
 

m
a
k
e
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 i
n
 

p
ra
c
ti
c
e
 b
a
s
e
d
 o
n
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
n
d
 

n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 

in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 d
e
ri
v
e
d
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 

a
n
a
ly
s
is
 o
f 
in
c
id
e
n
ts
. 

N
o
t 
M
e
t 

T
h
e
 P
C
T
 i
s
 n
o
w
 c
o
m
p
lia
n
t 
in
 t
h
is
 r
e
g
a
rd
, 
b
u
t 
h
a
s
 o
n
ly
 b
e
e
n
 s
o
 f
ro
m
 

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
7
. 
T
h
is
 i
n
-y
e
a
r 
la
p
s
e
 r
e
la
te
d
 o
n
ly
 t
o
 t
h
e
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 f
o
r 
le
s
s
 

s
e
ri
o
u
s
 i
n
c
id
e
n
ts
. 
T
h
e
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 f
o
r 
d
e
a
lin
g
 w
it
h
 S
e
ri
o
u
s
 U
n
to
w
a
rd
 

In
c
id
e
n
ts
 w
a
s
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
o
u
t 
th
e
 y
e
a
r.
 

M
e
d
w
a
y
 P
C
T
 (
N
a
ta
lie
 

D
a
v
ie
s
, 
C
o
m
p
a
n
y
 S
e
c
re
ta
ry
) 

C
5
a
 H
e
a
lt
h
 c
a
re
 

o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 

th
e
y
 c
o
n
fo
rm
 t
o
 N
IC
E
 

te
c
h
n
o
lo
g
y
 a
p
p
ra
is
a
ls
 a
n
d
, 

w
h
e
re
 i
t 
is
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
, 
ta
k
e
 i
n
to
 

a
c
c
o
u
n
t 
n
a
ti
o
n
a
lly
 a
g
re
e
d
 

g
u
id
a
n
c
e
 w
h
e
n
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 a
n
d
 

d
e
liv
e
ri
n
g
 t
re
a
tm
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

c
a
re
. 

In
s
u
ff
ic
ie
n
t 
A
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 

W
h
ile
 t
h
e
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 a
s
s
e
s
s
 c
o
n
fo
rm

it
y
 w
it
h
 N
IC
E
 T
e
c
h
n
o
lo
g
y
 

A
p
p
ra
is
a
ls
 i
s
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
, 
th
e
re
 i
s
 n
o
t 
a
n
 a
u
d
it
 t
ra
il 
to
 d
e
m
o
n
s
tr
a
te
 t
h
a
t 
a
n
 

a
c
ti
o
n
 p
la
n
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 i
n
 r
e
s
p
e
c
t 
o
f 
e
a
c
h
 a
n
d
 e
v
e
ry
 

T
e
c
h
n
o
lo
g
y
 A
p
p
ra
is
a
l.
 

Page 41



T
ru
s
t 

C
o
re
 S
ta
n
d
a
rd
 d
is
c
u
s
s
e
d
 

D
e
c
la
ra
ti
o
n
 

In
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 g
le
a
n
e
d
 

C
5
d
 H
e
a
lt
h
 c
a
re
 

o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 

c
lin
ic
ia
n
s
 p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
te
 i
n
 

re
g
u
la
r 
c
lin
ic
a
l 
a
u
d
it
 a
n
d
 

re
v
ie
w
s
 o
f 
c
lin
ic
a
l 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 

In
s
u
ff
ic
ie
n
t 
A
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 

A
 d
e
ta
ile
d
 c
lin
ic
a
l 
a
u
d
it
 p
la
n
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 a
g
re
e
d
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 P
C
T
 a
n
d
 

m
a
n
y
 c
lin
ic
a
l 
a
u
d
it
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
. 
H
o
w
e
v
e
r,
 n
o
t 
a
ll 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

a
re
 a
b
le
 t
o
 s
h
o
w
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
y
 h
a
v
e
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 a
ll 
th
e
 m

a
n
d
a
to
ry
 a
u
d
it
s
. 

C
7
e
 H
e
a
lt
h
 c
a
re
 

o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 c
h
a
lle
n
g
e
 

d
is
c
ri
m
in
a
ti
o
n
, 
p
ro
m
o
te
 

e
q
u
a
lit
y
 a
n
d
 r
e
s
p
e
c
t 
h
u
m
a
n
 

ri
g
h
ts
. 

N
o
t 
M
e
t 

C
1
8
 H
e
a
lt
h
 c
a
re
 

o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 e
n
a
b
le
 a
ll 

m
e
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
th
e
 p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 e
q
u
a
lly
 a
n
d
 

o
ff
e
r 
c
h
o
ic
e
 i
n
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 t
re
a
tm
e
n
t 

e
q
u
it
a
b
ly
. 

N
o
t 
M
e
t 

T
h
e
 P
C
T
 h
a
s
 n
o
t 
b
e
e
n
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 a
ll 
o
f 
th
e
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
 r
e
g
a
rd
in
g
 t
h
e
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
th
e
 e
ff
e
c
t 
o
f 
it
s
 p
o
lic
ie
s
 o
n
 m

in
o
ri
ty
 g
ro
u
p
s
. 
T
h
e
 P
C
T
 

fa
ile
d
 t
o
 u
p
d
a
te
 i
ts
 r
a
c
e
 e
q
u
a
lit
y
 s
c
h
e
m
e
 a
n
d
 t
o
 c
o
m
p
le
te
 e
q
u
a
lit
y
 

im
p
a
c
t 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
ts
 o
n
 i
ts
 B
o
a
rd
 p
a
p
e
rs
 –
 t
h
e
s
e
 f
a
ilu
re
s
 a
re
 n
o
w
 

b
e
in
g
 r
e
c
ti
fi
e
d
. 
A
 D
iv
e
rs
it
y
 a
n
d
 E
q
u
a
lit
y
 M

a
n
a
g
e
r 
is
 b
e
in
g
 a
p
p
o
in
te
d
. 

T
h
e
 P
C
T
 a
im
s
 n
o
t 
o
n
ly
 t
o
 m

e
e
t 
th
e
 m

in
im
u
m
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
 b
u
t 
to
 b
e
c
o
m
e
 a
 

c
e
n
tr
e
 o
f 
e
x
c
e
lle
n
c
e
 i
n
 t
h
is
 r
e
g
a
rd
. 

C
1
1
b
 H
e
a
lt
h
 c
a
re
 

o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 

s
ta
ff
 c
o
n
c
e
rn
e
d
 w
it
h
 a
ll 

a
s
p
e
c
ts
 o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 o
f 

h
e
a
lt
h
 c
a
re
 p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
te
 i
n
 

m
a
n
d
a
to
ry
 t
ra
in
in
g
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
. 

N
o
t 
M
e
t 

T
h
is
 r
e
la
te
s
 t
o
 n
o
n
-c
lin
ic
a
l 
tr
a
in
in
g
 (
e
.g
. 
fi
re
 s
a
fe
ty
).
 M
a
n
d
a
to
ry
 t
ra
in
in
g
 

s
e
s
s
io
n
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
, 
b
u
t 
a
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 l
e
v
e
ls
 h
a
v
e
 n
o
t 
b
e
e
n
 

s
a
ti
s
fa
c
to
ry
. 
T
h
e
 P
C
T
 n
e
e
d
s
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
b
o
th
 s
ta
ff
 a
n
d
 m

a
n
a
g
e
rs
 

re
c
o
g
n
is
e
 t
h
is
 t
ra
in
in
g
 a
s
 a
 p
ri
o
ri
ty
. 

Page 42



T
ru
s
t 

C
o
re
 S
ta
n
d
a
rd
 d
is
c
u
s
s
e
d
 

D
e
c
la
ra
ti
o
n
 

In
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 g
le
a
n
e
d
 

C
4
e
 H
e
a
lt
h
 c
a
re
 

o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 k
e
e
p
 p
a
ti
e
n
ts
, 

s
ta
ff
 a
n
d
 v
is
it
o
rs
 s
a
fe
 b
y
 

h
a
v
in
g
 s
y
s
te
m
s
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 

th
a
t 
th
e
 p
re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
, 

s
e
g
re
g
a
ti
o
n
, 
h
a
n
d
lin
g
, 

tr
a
n
s
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 d
is
p
o
s
a
l 
o
f 

w
a
s
te
 i
s
 p
ro
p
e
rl
y
 m
a
n
a
g
e
d
 

s
o
 a
s
 t
o
 m
in
im
is
e
 t
h
e
 r
is
k
s
 t
o
 

th
e
 h
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 s
a
fe
ty
 o
f 
s
ta
ff
, 

p
a
ti
e
n
ts
, 
th
e
 p
u
b
lic
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 

s
a
fe
ty
 o
f 
th
e
 e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t.
 

N
o
t 
M
e
t 

T
h
e
re
 w
e
re
 t
w
o
 o
r 
th
re
e
 b
re
a
c
h
e
s
 o
f 
s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 y
e
a
r,
 

m
e
a
n
in
g
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 T
ru
s
t 
h
a
s
 t
o
 d
e
c
la
re
 i
ts
e
lf
 N
o
t 
M
e
t.
 T
h
is
 w
a
s
 m

a
in
ly
 

d
u
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 i
n
a
d
e
q
u
a
c
y
 o
f 
th
e
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
s
p
e
c
if
ic
a
ti
o
n
 t
h
a
t 
h
a
d
 b
e
e
n
 

d
ra
w
n
 u
p
 b
y
 t
h
e
 K
e
n
t 
w
a
s
te
 c
o
n
s
o
rt
iu
m
. 
T
h
e
re
 a
re
 s
o
m
e
 i
n
te
rn
a
l 

is
s
u
e
s
 t
o
o
. 
A
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 c
a
s
e
 i
s
 b
e
in
g
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 f
o
r 
a
 d
e
d
ic
a
te
d
 w
a
s
te
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
r.
 T
h
e
re
 i
s
 a
 t
ra
in
in
g
 i
s
s
u
e
 a
ro
u
n
d
 t
h
e
 s
e
p
a
ra
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 

s
e
g
re
g
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
w
a
s
te
. 
T
h
e
 p
o
lic
y
 r
e
g
a
rd
in
g
 h
a
z
a
rd
o
u
s
 w
a
s
te
 d
is
p
o
s
a
l 

n
e
e
d
s
 t
o
 b
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
e
d
. 

E
a
s
t 
K
e
n
t 
H
o
s
p
it
a
ls
 T
ru
s
t 

(J
u
lie
 P
e
a
rc
e
, 
D
ir
e
c
to
r 
o
f 

N
u
rs
in
g
, 
Q
u
a
lit
y
 a
n
d
 

M
id
w
if
e
ry
) 

C
7
e
 H
e
a
lt
h
 c
a
re
 

o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 c
h
a
lle
n
g
e
 

d
is
c
ri
m
in
a
ti
o
n
, 
p
ro
m
o
te
 

e
q
u
a
lit
y
 a
n
d
 r
e
s
p
e
c
t 
h
u
m
a
n
 

ri
g
h
ts
. 

C
o
m
p
lia
n
t 

A
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 s
o
u
g
h
t,
 i
n
 p
a
rt
ic
u
la
r 
re
g
a
rd
in
g
 w
h
e
th
e
r 

o
r 
n
o
t 
th
e
re
 w
a
s
 a
 “
g
la
s
s
 c
e
ili
n
g
” 
a
ff
e
c
ti
n
g
 b
la
c
k
 a
n
d
 m

in
o
ri
ty
 e
th
n
ic
 

s
ta
ff
, 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 T
ru
s
t 
is
 s
a
ti
s
fi
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
it
 i
s
 C
o
m
p
lia
n
t.
 

 

Page 43



Page 44

This page is intentionally left blank



H
e
a
lt
h
 O
v
e
rv
ie
w
 a
n
d
 S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 

2
8
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
8
 

 T
ru
s
t 

C
o
re
 S
ta
n
d
a
rd
 

D
e
c
la
ra
ti
o
n
 

In
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 g
le
a
n
e
d
 

C
7
e
 H
e
a
lt
h
 c
a
re
 

o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 c
h
a
lle
n
g
e
 

d
is
c
ri
m
in
a
ti
o
n
, 
p
ro
m
o
te
 

e
q
u
a
lit
y
 a
n
d
 r
e
s
p
e
c
t 
h
u
m
a
n
 

ri
g
h
ts
. 

N
o
t 
M
e
t 

In
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 n
o
w
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 i
n
 a
 w
id
e
r 
ra
n
g
e
 o
f 
la
n
g
u
a
g
e
s
 a
n
d
 m
o
re
 

p
a
ti
e
n
t 
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 o
n
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 h
a
d
 b
e
e
n
 p
u
b
lis
h
e
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 T
ru
s
t’
s
 

w
e
b
s
it
e
. 
In
te
rp
re
te
rs
 a
re
 a
ls
o
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
. 
C
o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
tl
y
, 
th
e
 T
ru
s
t 
is
 n
o
w
 

C
o
m
p
lia
n
t 
in
 r
e
s
p
e
c
t 
o
f 
th
is
 C
o
re
 S
ta
n
d
a
rd
, 
b
u
t 
it
 h
a
s
 o
n
ly
 b
e
e
n
 s
o
 

s
in
c
e
 t
h
e
 m
id
d
le
 o
f 
2
0
0
7
–
8
 

C
1
5
 W

h
e
re
 f
o
o
d
 i
s
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
, 

h
e
a
lt
h
 c
a
re
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 

h
a
v
e
 s
y
s
te
m
s
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 t
o
 

e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t:
 

a
) 
p
a
ti
e
n
ts
 a
re
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 w
it
h
 

a
 c
h
o
ic
e
 a
n
d
 t
h
a
t 
it
 i
s
 

p
re
p
a
re
d
 s
a
fe
ly
 a
n
d
 p
ro
v
id
e
s
 

a
 b
a
la
n
c
e
d
 d
ie
t;
 a
n
d
 

b
) 
p
a
ti
e
n
ts
’ 
in
d
iv
id
u
a
l 

n
u
tr
it
io
n
a
l,
 p
e
rs
o
n
a
l 
a
n
d
 

c
lin
ic
a
l 
d
ie
ta
ry
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
 

a
re
 m
e
t,
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 a
n
y
 

n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry
 h
e
lp
 w
it
h
 f
e
e
d
in
g
 

a
n
d
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 f
o
o
d
 2
4
 h
o
u
rs
 

a
 d
a
y
. 

C
o
m
p
lia
n
t 

T
h
e
 P
a
ti
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 P
u
b
lic
 I
n
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t 
F
o
ru
m
 f
o
r 
th
e
 T
ru
s
t 
w
a
s
 c
ri
ti
c
a
l 
o
f 

c
a
te
ri
n
g
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 i
n
 i
ts
 t
h
ir
d
-p
a
rt
y
 c
o
m
m
e
n
ta
ry
 f
o
r 
th
e
 2
0
0
6
–
7
 

A
n
n
u
a
l 
H
e
a
lt
h
 C
h
e
c
k
, 
b
u
t 
it
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 m
o
re
 p
o
s
it
iv
e
 t
h
is
 t
im
e
. 
T
h
e
 n
e
w
 

c
a
te
ri
n
g
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
is
 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l 
a
n
d
 t
h
is
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 v
e
ri
fi
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 T
ru
s
t 

B
o
a
rd
. 
 A
n
y
 p
a
ti
e
n
t 
n
e
e
d
in
g
 a
s
s
is
ta
n
c
e
 w
it
h
 e
a
ti
n
g
 i
s
 s
e
rv
e
d
 t
h
e
ir
 m
e
a
l 

o
n
 a
 r
e
d
 t
ra
y
 (
in
s
te
a
d
 o
f 
th
e
 u
s
u
a
l 
b
lu
e
 t
ra
y
),
 s
o
 t
h
a
t 
s
ta
ff
, 
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 s
ta
ff
, 
c
a
n
 h
e
lp
 t
h
e
m
. 

D
a
rt
fo
rd
 a
n
d
 G
ra
v
e
s
h
a
m
 

N
H
S
 T
ru
s
t 
(M
a
rk
 D
e
v
lin
, 

C
h
ie
f 
E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
, 
a
n
d
 S
u
s
a
n
 

A
c
o
tt
, 
D
ir
e
c
to
r 
o
f 

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 D
ir
e
c
to
r 

L
e
a
d
 f
o
r 
G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
) 

C
4
a
 H
e
a
lt
h
 c
a
re
 

o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 k
e
e
p
 p
a
ti
e
n
ts
, 

s
ta
ff
 a
n
d
 v
is
it
o
rs
 s
a
fe
 b
y
 

h
a
v
in
g
 s
y
s
te
m
s
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 

th
a
t 
th
e
 r
is
k
 o
f 
h
e
a
lt
h
 c
a
re
 

a
c
q
u
ir
e
d
 i
n
fe
c
ti
o
n
 t
o
 p
a
ti
e
n
ts
 

is
 r
e
d
u
c
e
d
, 
w
it
h
 p
a
rt
ic
u
la
r 

e
m
p
h
a
s
is
 o
n
 h
ig
h
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 

o
f 
h
y
g
ie
n
e
 a
n
d
 c
le
a
n
lin
e
s
s
, 

a
c
h
ie
v
in
g
 y
e
a
r-
o
n
-y
e
a
r 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 M
R
S
A
. 

C
o
m
p
lia
n
t 

T
h
e
 T
ru
s
t’
s
 p
o
s
it
io
n
 r
e
g
a
rd
in
g
 C
lo
s
tr
id
iu
m
 d
if
fi
c
ile
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 

c
o
n
s
is
te
n
tl
y
 g
o
o
d
 f
o
r 
s
o
m
e
 t
im
e
. 
 R
e
g
a
rd
in
g
 c
a
s
e
s
 o
f 
M
R
S
A
, 
th
e
 T
ru
s
t 

a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 i
ts
 t
a
rg
e
t 
o
f 
n
o
t 
m
o
re
 t
h
a
n
 1
2
 c
a
s
e
s
 i
n
 2
0
0
7
–
8
. 

Page 45



 
 

T
ru
s
t 

C
o
re
 S
ta
n
d
a
rd
 

D
e
c
la
ra
ti
o
n
 

In
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 g
le
a
n
e
d
 

C
6
 H
e
a
lt
h
 c
a
re
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 

c
o
o
p
e
ra
te
 w
it
h
 e
a
c
h
 o
th
e
r 

a
n
d
 s
o
c
ia
l 
c
a
re
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 

to
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
p
a
ti
e
n
ts
’ 

in
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
n
e
e
d
s
 a
re
 p
ro
p
e
rl
y
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
d
 a
n
d
 m

e
t.
 

C
o
m
p
lia
n
t 

T
h
e
 P
a
ti
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 P
u
b
lic
 I
n
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t 
F
o
ru
m
 f
o
r 
W
e
s
t 
K
e
n
t 
P
C
T
 h
a
s
 

re
p
o
rt
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 T
ru
s
t’
s
 D
ia
b
e
te
s
 T
e
a
m
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 u
n
a
b
le
 t
o
 a
ff
o
rd
 a
 

re
p
a
ir
 t
o
 o
n
e
 o
f 
it
s
 t
h
re
e
 s
p
e
c
ia
l 
d
ig
it
a
l 
c
a
m
e
ra
s
, 
c
a
u
s
in
g
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 t
o
 

b
e
 c
u
t 
b
y
 a
 t
h
ir
d
 a
n
d
 p
u
tt
in
g
 p
a
ti
e
n
ts
 a
t 
ri
s
k
. 
T
h
e
 T
ru
s
t 
is
 a
w
a
re
 t
h
a
t 
a
 

c
a
m
e
ra
 u
s
e
d
 f
o
r 
d
ia
b
e
ti
c
 r
e
ti
n
o
p
a
th
y
 s
c
re
e
n
in
g
 h
a
s
 n
o
t 
b
e
e
n
 w
o
rk
in
g
, 

b
u
t 
in
s
is
ts
 t
h
is
 i
s
 n
o
t 
a
 f
u
n
d
a
m
e
n
ta
l 
is
s
u
e
. 
T
h
e
 d
ia
b
e
ti
c
 r
e
ti
n
o
p
a
th
y
 

s
c
re
e
n
in
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
s
 b
e
in
g
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 b
y
 a
 t
e
a
m
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 P
a
u
la
 C
a
rr
 

T
ru
s
t.
 

M
a
id
s
to
n
e
 a
n
d
 T
u
n
b
ri
d
g
e
 

W
e
ll
s
 N
H
S
 T
ru
s
t 
(G
le
n
n
 

D
o
u
g
la
s
, 
C
h
ie
f 
E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
, 

a
n
d
 M
s
 C
h
ri
s
ti
n
a
 E
d
w
a
rd
s
, 

A
c
ti
n
g
 C
h
ie
f 
N
u
rs
e
) 

C
4
a
 H
e
a
lt
h
 c
a
re
 

o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 k
e
e
p
 p
a
ti
e
n
ts
, 

s
ta
ff
 a
n
d
 v
is
it
o
rs
 s
a
fe
 b
y
 

h
a
v
in
g
 s
y
s
te
m
s
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 

th
a
t 
th
e
 r
is
k
 o
f 
h
e
a
lt
h
 c
a
re
 

a
c
q
u
ir
e
d
 i
n
fe
c
ti
o
n
 t
o
 p
a
ti
e
n
ts
 

is
 r
e
d
u
c
e
d
, 
w
it
h
 p
a
rt
ic
u
la
r 

e
m
p
h
a
s
is
 o
n
 h
ig
h
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 

o
f 
h
y
g
ie
n
e
 a
n
d
 c
le
a
n
lin
e
s
s
, 

a
c
h
ie
v
in
g
 y
e
a
r-
o
n
-y
e
a
r 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 M
R
S
A
. 

C
o
m
p
lia
n
t 

G
o
o
d
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 m
a
d
e
 o
n
 M
R
S
A
, 
w
it
h
 t
h
e
 T
ru
s
t 
n
o
w
 b
e
in
g
 o
n
e
 

o
f 
th
e
 b
e
s
t 
p
e
rf
o
rm
in
g
 o
n
 t
h
is
. 
W
it
h
 r
e
g
a
rd
 t
o
 C
lo
s
tr
id
iu
m
 d
if
fi
c
ile
, 
th
e
 

T
ru
s
t 
h
a
s
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 a
ll 
it
s
 t
a
rg
e
ts
 a
n
d
 h
a
s
 i
n
 f
a
c
t 
c
o
n
s
id
e
ra
b
ly
 

u
n
d
e
rs
h
o
t,
 w
it
h
 a
 s
te
a
d
y
 d
e
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 c
a
s
e
s
 e
v
e
n
 t
h
o
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 

in
fe
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 i
s
 r
is
in
g
. 
T
w
o
 m
e
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
s
ta
ff
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 

d
is
m
is
s
e
d
 f
o
r 
p
o
o
r 
p
ra
c
ti
c
e
 i
n
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 i
n
fe
c
ti
o
n
 c
o
n
tr
o
l 
a
n
d
 t
w
o
 h
a
v
e
 

b
e
e
n
 g
iv
e
n
 w
a
rn
in
g
s
. 
S
e
n
io
r 
n
u
rs
e
s
 a
re
 n
o
w
 t
a
k
in
g
 m
o
re
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ty
, 

w
h
ic
h
 i
s
 k
e
y
. 
 A
ls
o
, 
m
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
 s
ta
ff
 a
re
 n
o
w
 u
n
d
e
r 
p
re
s
s
u
re
 f
ro
m
 

n
u
rs
in
g
 s
ta
ff
 t
o
 m
a
in
ta
in
 h
ig
h
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 o
f 
c
le
a
n
lin
e
s
s
. 

E
a
s
te
rn
 a
n
d
 C
o
a
s
ta
l 
K
e
n
t 

P
C
T
 (
L
y
n
n
e
 S
e
lm
a
n
, 
D
ir
e
c
to
r 

o
f 
C
it
iz
e
n
 E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
, 
K
a
re
n
 

B
e
n
b
o
w
, 
A
s
s
is
ta
n
t 
D
ir
e
c
to
r 

A
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
, 
a
n
d
 D
e
b
ra
 V
id
le
r,
 

H
e
a
d
 o
f 
S
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 a
n
d
 

B
e
tt
e
r 
H
e
a
lt
h
) 

C
9
 H
e
a
lt
h
 c
a
re
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 

h
a
v
e
 a
 s
y
s
te
m
a
ti
c
 a
n
d
 

p
la
n
n
e
d
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
re
c
o
rd
s
 t
o
 

e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t,
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 

m
o
m
e
n
t 
a
 r
e
c
o
rd
 i
s
 c
re
a
te
d
 

u
n
ti
l 
it
s
 u
lt
im
a
te
 d
is
p
o
s
a
l,
 t
h
e
 

o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
 m

a
in
ta
in
s
 

in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 s
o
 t
h
a
t 
it
 s
e
rv
e
s
 

th
e
 p
u
rp
o
s
e
 i
t 
w
a
s
 c
o
lle
c
te
d
 

fo
r 
a
n
d
 d
is
p
o
s
e
s
 o
f 
th
e
 

in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
ly
 

w
h
e
n
 n
o
 l
o
n
g
e
r 
re
q
u
ir
e
d
. 

N
o
t 
M
e
t 

T
h
e
 P
C
T
 i
s
 u
n
a
b
le
 t
o
 t
ra
c
k
 s
y
s
te
m
a
ti
c
a
lly
 a
 p
a
ti
e
n
t 
w
h
o
 i
s
 b
e
in
g
 t
re
a
te
d
 

b
y
 m
o
re
 t
h
a
n
 o
n
e
 P
C
T
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
. 

Page 46



 
 

T
ru
s
t 

C
o
re
 S
ta
n
d
a
rd
 

D
e
c
la
ra
ti
o
n
 

In
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 g
le
a
n
e
d
 

C
1
3
c
 H
e
a
lt
h
 c
a
re
 

o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 h
a
v
e
 s
y
s
te
m
s
 

in
 p
la
c
e
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
s
ta
ff
 

tr
e
a
t 
p
a
ti
e
n
t 
in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 

c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
ti
a
lly
, 
e
x
c
e
p
t 
w
h
e
re
 

a
u
th
o
ri
s
e
d
 b
y
 l
e
g
is
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 

th
e
 c
o
n
tr
a
ry
. 

N
o
t 
M
e
t 

T
w
o
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
la
p
s
e
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
. 
A
n
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 g
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

p
a
c
k
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 p
ro
d
u
c
e
d
 a
n
d
 s
e
n
t 
to
 a
ll 
s
ta
ff
; 
a
n
d
 a
n
 e
x
te
n
s
iv
e
 s
ta
ff
 

tr
a
in
in
g
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 i
s
 b
e
in
g
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
. 

C
1
1
b
 H
e
a
lt
h
 c
a
re
 

o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 

s
ta
ff
 c
o
n
c
e
rn
e
d
 w
it
h
 a
ll 

a
s
p
e
c
ts
 o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 o
f 

h
e
a
lt
h
 c
a
re
 p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
te
 i
n
 

m
a
n
d
a
to
ry
 t
ra
in
in
g
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
 

In
s
u
ff
ic
ie
n
t 
A
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 

T
h
e
 P
C
T
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 l
a
c
k
in
g
 a
 s
y
s
te
m
 t
o
 m
o
n
it
o
r 
u
p
ta
k
e
 o
f 
s
ta
tu
to
ry
 a
n
d
 

m
a
n
d
a
to
ry
 t
ra
in
in
g
 b
y
 s
ta
ff
. 

C
1
8
 H
e
a
lt
h
 c
a
re
 

o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 e
n
a
b
le
 a
ll 

m
e
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
th
e
 p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 e
q
u
a
lly
 a
n
d
 

o
ff
e
r 
c
h
o
ic
e
 i
n
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 t
re
a
tm

e
n
t 

e
q
u
it
a
b
ly
. 

C
o
m
p
lia
n
t 

T
h
e
 P
a
ti
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 P
u
b
lic
 I
n
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t 
F
o
ru
m
 f
o
r 
th
e
 P
C
T
 h
a
s
 r
a
is
e
d
 t
h
e
 

is
s
u
e
 o
f 
la
c
k
 o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 S
w
a
le
 d
is
tr
ic
t.
 I
n
v
e
s
tm
e
n
t 
is
 b
e
in
g
 m
a
d
e
 

in
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 i
n
 S
w
a
le
 a
n
d
 o
th
e
r 
a
re
a
s
 o
f 
u
n
d
e
rp
ro
v
is
io
n
. 
A
b
o
u
t 
£
1
m
 o
f 

a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
fu
n
d
in
g
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 i
n
v
e
s
te
d
 i
n
 S
w
a
le
 G
P
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 
a
n
d
 m
o
n
e
y
 

h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 f
o
r 
n
e
w
 i
n
te
rm
e
d
ia
te
 c
a
re
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 o
th
e
r 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 
in
 o
rd
e
r 
to
 r
e
c
ti
fy
 p
a
s
t 
u
n
d
e
ri
n
v
e
s
tm
e
n
t 
in
 t
h
e
 a
re
a
. 
H
e
a
lt
h
 

a
n
d
 W
e
llb
e
in
g
 G
ro
u
p
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 s
e
t 
u
p
 a
c
ro
s
s
 e
a
c
h
 o
f 
th
e
 d
is
tr
ic
t 

c
o
u
n
c
il 
a
re
a
s
 c
o
v
e
re
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 P
C
T
, 
w
it
h
 a
n
 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 D
ir
e
c
to
r 
le
a
d
in
g
 

e
a
c
h
 o
f 
th
e
m
. 
In
 s
o
m
e
 r
e
s
p
e
c
ts
, 
S
w
a
le
 a
c
tu
a
lly
 h
a
s
 b
e
tt
e
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

th
a
n
 o
th
e
r 
a
re
a
s
, 
fo
r 
in
s
ta
n
c
e
 a
s
 r
e
g
a
rd
s
 a
u
d
io
lo
g
y
. 
M
e
e
ti
n
g
 t
h
is
 C
o
re
 

S
ta
n
d
a
rd
 i
s
 a
b
o
u
t 
h
a
v
in
g
 s
y
s
te
m
s
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 t
o
 a
llo
w
 t
h
e
 P
C
T
 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 

u
n
d
e
rs
e
rv
e
d
 a
re
a
s
 a
n
d
 a
c
t 
a
c
c
o
rd
in
g
ly
 –
 t
h
is
 d
o
e
s
 n
o
t 
m
e
a
n
 t
h
a
t 
a
ll 

a
re
a
s
 a
re
 w
e
ll-
s
e
rv
e
d
 a
t 
th
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
m
o
m
e
n
t 
in
 t
im
e
. 

 

Page 47



Page 48

This page is intentionally left blank



08/so/hosc/050908/Item 6 – Draft Work Programme 

By:  Overview, Scrutiny and Localism Manager 
 
To:  Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee – Friday 9 May 2008 
 
DRAFT WORK PROGRAMME FOR JUNE 2008 TO APRIL 2009 
 

 
Introduction 
 
1. (1) The Committee will recall that, when it considered the report on 
refocusing the Committee in September 2007, one of the key objectives was to 
agree a work programme for the forthcoming year. 
 
 (2) The report in September identified some key components of the work 
programme including:- 
 

 (a) in April each year, submitting third-party commentaries on trusts’ 
performance against Core Standards for the purposes of the 
Healthcare Commission’s Annual Health Check; and 

 
 (b) in the autumn and early in each New Year, scrutinising the 

Operating Plans for each of the Primary Care Trusts. 
 
Draft Work Programme 
 
2. (1) The Chairman of the Committee has recently met with the Chairmen and 

Chief Executives of the two Kent Primary Care Trusts to consider those 
issues which are considered important for inclusion in the Draft Work 
Programme of the Committee.  This followed a meeting at which 
Dr Robinson (on behalf of the Chairman), Mrs Rowbotham (on behalf of Mr 
Fittock) and Mr Daley were present to input topics for inclusion in the 
programme. 

 
(2) The outcome of those discussions is a draft Work Programme for the period 

June 2008 to April 2009, which is attached as an Appendix to this report. 
 
(3) The draft Work Programme is only indicative of the issues/items already 

known to the Committee. It does not take into account any unplanned 
items, such as referrals from the Local Involvement Network (LINK) or 
matters arising from complaints to Kent Health Watch or Patient Advice and 
Liaison Services. 

 
(4) The Work Programme will be submitted to the Committee for its approval in 

April each year. 
 

Recommendations 
 
3. The Committee is asked to agree the draft Work Programme for June 2008 to 

April 2009. 
 

 

Agenda Item 6

Page 49



Page 50

This page is intentionally left blank



D
ra
ft
 F
o
rw

a
rd
 W

o
rk
 P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 f
o
r 
th
e
 H
e
a
lt
h
 O
v
e
rv
ie
w
 a
n
d
 S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
, 
2
0
0
8
–
9
 

 

M
e
e
ti
n
g
 d
a
te
 

T
o
p
ic
(s
) 

W
it
n
e
s
s
(e
s
) 

F
o
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 T
ru
s
t 
s
ta
tu
s
 

a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
 b
y
 K
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

M
e
d
w
a
y
 N
H
S
 a
n
d
 S
o
c
ia
l 

C
a
re
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 T
ru
s
t 

•
 
K
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 M
e
d
w
a
y
 N
H
S
 a
n
d
 S
o
c
ia
l 
C
a
re
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 T
ru
s
t 

D
ia
b
e
te
s
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

•
 
E
a
s
te
rn
 a
n
d
 C
o
a
s
ta
l 
K
e
n
t 
P
C
T
 

•
 
W
e
s
t 
K
e
n
t 
P
C
T
 

A
c
c
e
s
s
in
g
 h
e
a
lt
h
c
a
re
 

 

1
3
 J
u
n
e
 2
0
0
8
 

A
u
d
io
lo
g
y
 

•
 
E
a
s
te
rn
 a
n
d
 C
o
a
s
ta
l 
K
e
n
t 
P
C
T
 

•
 
W
e
s
t 
K
e
n
t 
P
C
T
 

E
a
s
t 
K
e
n
t 
O
ld
e
r 
P
e
o
p
le
’s
 

M
e
n
ta
l 
H
e
a
lt
h
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

•
 
E
a
s
te
rn
 a
n
d
 C
o
a
s
ta
l 
K
e
n
t 
P
C
T
 

•
 
E
a
s
t 
K
e
n
t 
H
o
s
p
it
a
ls
 N
H
S
 T
ru
s
t 

•
 
K
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 M
e
d
w
a
y
 N
H
S
 a
n
d
 S
o
c
ia
l 
C
a
re
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 T
ru
s
t 

D
e
n
ti
s
tr
y
 

•
 
E
a
s
te
rn
 a
n
d
 C
o
a
s
ta
l 
K
e
n
t 
P
C
T
 

•
 
W
e
s
t 
K
e
n
t 
P
C
T
 

1
8
 J
u
ly
 2
0
0
8
 

G
P
-l
e
d
 h
e
a
lt
h
 c
e
n
tr
e
s
 

(“
D
a
rz
i 
c
lin
ic
s
”)
 

•
 
E
a
s
te
rn
 a
n
d
 C
o
a
s
ta
l 
K
e
n
t 
P
C
T
 

•
 
S
o
u
th
 E
a
s
t 
C
o
a
s
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 H
e
a
lt
h
 A
u
th
o
ri
ty
  

•
 
W
e
s
t 
K
e
n
t 
P
C
T
 

5
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
8
 

T
ru
s
ts
’ 
a
n
d
 P
C
T
s
’ 

p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

o
f 
d
e
liv
e
ry
 p
la
n
s
, 
ta
rg
e
ts
 

a
n
d
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 2
0
0
8
–
9
 –
 

in
c
lu
d
in
g
 h
e
a
lt
h
 

in
e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 

•
 
D
a
rt
fo
rd
 a
n
d
 G
ra
v
e
s
h
a
m
 N
H
S
 T
ru
s
t 

•
 
E
a
s
te
rn
 a
n
d
 C
o
a
s
ta
l 
K
e
n
t 
P
C
T
 

•
 
E
a
s
t 
K
e
n
t 
H
o
s
p
it
a
ls
 N
H
S
 T
ru
s
t 

•
 
K
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 M
e
d
w
a
y
 N
H
S
 a
n
d
 S
o
c
ia
l 
C
a
re
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 T
ru
s
t 

•
 
M
a
id
s
to
n
e
 a
n
d
 T
u
n
b
ri
d
g
e
 W
e
lls
 N
H
S
 T
ru
s
t 

•
 
M
e
d
w
a
y
 N
H
S
 F
o
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 T
ru
s
t 

•
 
M
e
d
w
a
y
 P
C
T
?
 

•
 
S
o
u
th
 E
a
s
t 
C
o
a
s
t 
A
m
b
u
la
n
c
e
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 N
H
S
 T
ru
s
t 
 

•
 
W
e
s
t 
K
e
n
t 
P
C
T
 

Page 51



 
2
 

M
e
e
ti
n
g
 d
a
te
 

T
o
p
ic
(s
) 

W
it
n
e
s
s
(e
s
) 

P
u
b
lic
 H
e
a
lt
h
 

•
 
E
a
s
te
rn
 a
n
d
 C
o
a
s
ta
l 
K
e
n
t 
P
C
T
 

•
 
K
C
C
 P
u
b
lic
 H
e
a
lt
h
 D
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
t 

•
 
W
e
s
t 
K
e
n
t 
P
C
T
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 p
h
a
rm
a
c
y
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 p
re
s
c
ri
b
in
g
 

(i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 a
v
a
ila
b
ili
ty
 o
f 

m
e
d
ic
a
l 
d
ru
g
s
 i
n
 K
e
n
t)
 

•
 
E
a
s
te
rn
 a
n
d
 C
o
a
s
ta
l 
K
e
n
t 
P
C
T
 

•
 
K
e
n
t 
L
o
c
a
l 
P
h
a
rm
a
c
y
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 

•
 
W
e
s
t 
K
e
n
t 
P
C
T
 

1
7
 O
c
to
b
e
r 

2
0
0
8
 

B
ri
e
fi
n
g
 o
n
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 w
it
h
 

P
C
T
s
’ 
O
p
e
ra
ti
n
g
 P
la
n
s
 

a
n
d
 b
u
d
g
e
ts
 2
0
0
9
–
1
0
 

•
 
E
a
s
te
rn
 a
n
d
 C
o
a
s
ta
l 
K
e
n
t 
P
C
T
 

•
 
W
e
s
t 
K
e
n
t 
P
C
T
 

R
e
c
e
iv
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
 t
o
 e
n
a
b
le
 

H
O
S
C
 t
o
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
 c
ri
te
ri
a
 

a
n
d
 p
o
lic
y
 f
o
r 
a
s
s
e
s
s
in
g
 

fu
tu
re
 r
e
c
o
n
fi
g
u
ra
ti
o
n
s
 /
 

ra
ti
o
n
a
lis
a
ti
o
n
s
 o
f 
N
H
S
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 (
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 

to
 h
e
a
lt
h
 c
a
re
 a
n
d
 

a
d
v
a
n
ta
g
e
s
 o
f 
lo
c
a
l 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 
b
a
la
n
c
e
d
 

a
g
a
in
s
t 
e
c
o
n
o
m
ie
s
 o
f 

s
c
a
le
 a
n
d
 s
p
e
c
ia
lis
t 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
) 
–
 t
o
 m
a
k
e
 

re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
/ 
C
o
u
n
c
il 

 
2
8
 N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
8
 

S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 o
f 
P
C
T
s
’ 

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 

P
la
n
s
 

•
 
E
a
s
te
rn
 a
n
d
 C
o
a
s
ta
l 
K
e
n
t 
P
C
T
 

•
 
W
e
s
t 
K
e
n
t 
P
C
T
 

D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
8
 

R
e
c
e
iv
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
 (
b
y
 K
in
g
’s
 

F
u
n
d
?
) 
o
n
 N
H
S
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 

a
n
d
 d
e
liv
e
ri
n
g
 v
a
lu
e
 f
o
r 

m
o
n
e
y
 i
n
 K
e
n
t 

 

Page 52



 
3
 

M
e
e
ti
n
g
 d
a
te
 

T
o
p
ic
(s
) 

W
it
n
e
s
s
(e
s
) 

9
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 

2
0
0
9
 

S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 o
f 
P
C
T
s
’ 
d
ra
ft
 

O
p
e
ra
ti
n
g
 P
la
n
s
 a
n
d
 

b
u
d
g
e
ts
 2
0
0
9
–
1
0
 

•
 
E
a
s
te
rn
 a
n
d
 C
o
a
s
ta
l 
K
e
n
t 
P
C
T
 

•
 
W
e
s
t 
K
e
n
t 
P
C
T
 

6
 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 

2
0
0
9
 

 
 

2
0
 M
a
rc
h
 

2
0
0
9
 

T
h
ir
d
-p
a
rt
y
 c
o
m
m
e
n
ta
ri
e
s
 

o
n
 C
o
re
 S
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 f
o
r 

H
e
a
lt
h
c
a
re
 C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
 

A
n
n
u
a
l 
H
e
a
lt
h
 C
h
e
c
k
 

2
0
0
8
–
9
 

•
 
D
a
rt
fo
rd
 a
n
d
 G
ra
v
e
s
h
a
m
 N
H
S
 T
ru
s
t 

•
 
E
a
s
te
rn
 a
n
d
 C
o
a
s
ta
l 
K
e
n
t 
P
C
T
 

•
 
E
a
s
t 
K
e
n
t 
H
o
s
p
it
a
ls
 N
H
S
 T
ru
s
t 

•
 
K
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 M
e
d
w
a
y
 N
H
S
 a
n
d
 S
o
c
ia
l 
C
a
re
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 T
ru
s
t 

•
 
M
a
id
s
to
n
e
 a
n
d
 T
u
n
b
ri
d
g
e
 W
e
lls
 N
H
S
 T
ru
s
t 

•
 
M
e
d
w
a
y
 N
H
S
 F
o
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 T
ru
s
t 

•
 
M
e
d
w
a
y
 P
C
T
?
 

•
 
S
o
u
th
 E
a
s
t 
C
o
a
s
t 
A
m
b
u
la
n
c
e
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 N
H
S
 T
ru
s
t 

•
 
W
e
s
t 
K
e
n
t 
P
C
T
 

2
4
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
0
9
 

R
e
c
e
iv
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
s
 o
n
 P
u
b
lic
 

H
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 H
e
a
lt
h
y
 L
iv
in
g
, 

in
c
lu
d
in
g
 k
e
y
 p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 

in
d
ic
a
to
rs
 

•
 
E
a
s
te
rn
 a
n
d
 C
o
a
s
ta
l 
K
e
n
t 
P
C
T
 

•
 
K
C
C
 P
u
b
lic
 H
e
a
lt
h
 D
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
t 

•
 
W
e
s
t 
K
e
n
t 
P
C
T
 

 O
th
e
r 
to
p
ic
s
: 

 

•
 
K
e
n
t 
A
d
u
lt
 S
o
c
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

•
 
L
e
a
rn
in
g
 D
is
a
b
ili
ty
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

•
 
C
o
ro
n
a
ry
 H
e
a
rt
 D
is
e
a
s
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 (
c
o
v
e
re
d
 b
y
 F
it
 f
o
r 
th
e
 F
u
tu
re
?
) 

•
 
S
tr
o
k
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 (
c
o
v
e
re
d
 b
y
 F
it
 f
o
r 
th
e
 F
u
tu
re
?
) 

•
 
P
u
b
lic
 h
e
a
lt
h
 i
s
s
u
e
s
: 
o
b
e
s
it
y
, 
s
m
o
k
in
g
 c
e
s
s
a
ti
o
n
, 
d
ia
b
e
te
s
, 
e
tc
. 

•
 
R
e
d
u
c
in
g
 h
e
a
lt
h
 i
n
e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 

•
 
R
o
le
 o
f 
in
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
S
e
c
to
r 
p
ro
v
id
e
rs
 

•
 
C
h
ild
 a
n
d
 A
d
o
le
s
c
e
n
t 
M
e
n
ta
l 
H
e
a
lt
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

   

Page 53



 
4
 

O
th
e
r 
is
s
u
e
s
 t
o
 b
e
 t
a
k
e
n
 o
n
 b
o
a
rd
: 

 

•
 
F
le
x
ib
ili
ty
 n
e
e
d
s
 t
o
 b
e
 b
u
ilt
 i
n
to
 t
h
e
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
, 
to
 a
llo
w
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
iv
e
n
e
s
s
 t
o
 u
n
fo
re
s
e
e
n
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 

•
 
U
n
k
n
o
w
n
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
re
fe
rr
a
ls
 f
ro
m
 K
e
n
t 
L
o
c
a
l 
In
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t 
N
e
tw
o
rk
 a
n
d
 K
e
n
t 
H
e
a
lt
h
w
a
tc
h
 

•
 
M
e
m
b
e
r 
in
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

•
 
In
te
rr
e
la
ti
o
n
s
h
ip
 w
it
h
 C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 A
d
u
lt
 S
o
c
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

Page 54



Briefing note on Buckland Hospital and health services in Dover 

Background 

Buckland Hospital is a small former acute hospital at Coombe Valley Road, 
Buckland, Dover, run by East Kent Hospitals NHS Trust. 

The building in which the hospital is housed was originally a Workhouse, built 
in 1836. It was taken over by the NHS in 1948 and eventually (with the closure 
of two other local hospitals) became the sole NHS hospital in Dover, serving 
as the local district general hospital. 

In recent years a number of services have been withdrawn from Buckland 
Hospital – including the Accident and Emergency department, which has been 
replaced by a nurse-led Minor Injuries Unit (open seven days a week but not 
24 hours a day). Patients from the Dover area requiring A&E services now 
have to travel to the William Harvey Hospital at Ashford, the Kent and 
Canterbury Hospital or the Queen Elizabeth The Queen Mother Hospital at 
Margate. 

Buckland Hospital does, however, continue to provide a range of outpatient 
services and some inpatient services. It currently houses: 

• the specialist East Kent Neurorehabilitation Unit (providing 
rehabilitation services for people with Epilepsy, Multiple Sclerosis, 
Motor Neurone Disease, Parkinson’s Disease or traumatic brain injury); 

• the award-winning Dover Family Birthing Centre (which offers 
expectant mothers the option of a birthing pool); 

• the Dunkirk Renal Satellite Unit (providing haemodialysis services for 
kidney patients). 

The Dover Project (2006) 

In July 2005 the NHS Overview and Scrutiny Committee asked the local NHS 
to undertake a public discussion about the future of health services in Dover. 

During January and February 2006, East Kent Coastal PCT and East Kent 
Hospitals Trust met various stakeholders, including the NHS Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee. 

A 12-week public consultation by the PCT and the Trust about possible 
models of health and social care service delivery in Dover took place between 
June and September 2006 around the document The Dover Project – Your 
Say. This was a 20-page publication, outlining possible alternative models of 
provision for 11 service areas, with an accompanying response form to allow 
members of the public to indicate which options they preferred. Three public 
meetings were held as part of the consultation. While the consultation was 
concerned with services provided in Dover town, the consultation process was 
promoted across Dover district. 

Agenda Item 7

Page 55



  

The NHS OSC considered this consultation on four occasions (on 30 March 
2006, 12 May 2006, 22 September 2006 and 23 March 2007). Members were 
unanimously supportive of the way that The Dover Project was being 
undertaken. 

The PCT and the Trust emphasised that the consultation was about services 
rather than buildings; the specific details of where services were to be 
provided would only be considered once the agreed Models of Care were 
clear. As such, the consultation was not directly concerned with the future of 
Buckland Hospital. 

Nevertheless, many Dover residents, along with the local press and the town’s 
MP, Gwyn Prosser (Lab.), were of the opinion that The Dover Project was an 
attempt to bring about the closure of Buckland Hospital by surreptitious 
means. East Kent Hospitals Trust was accused of wanting to sell off Buckland 
Hospital for housing development in order to bolster the Trust’s financial 
position. A senior clinician at the hospital, Dr John Sewell, also queried the 
motives behind The Dover Project and argued in favour of retaining hospital 
services at the Buckland site. 

During the consultation, the Dover Express conducted a poll, in which 2,229 
people responded in favour of keeping the hospital open, with just seven 
against. Thirteen thousand signatures were collected on a petition to save the 
hospital, which was handed in at 10 Downing Street in September 2006 by Mr 
Prosser and local campaigner Pauline Major. 

The leader of Dover District Council, Cllr Paul Watkins (Con.), was critical of 
Mr Prosser and the campaign to keep Buckland Hospital open. He argued that 
the poor quality of the antiquated estate at the hospital meant that it was no 
longer fit for the provision of modern healthcare. 

A total of 888 response forms from the public were submitted during the 
consultation on The Dover Project (4,800 forms were distributed). 

The preferred options for Models of Care arising from the consultation have 
been summarised by the PCT as follows: 

• CARE OF THE ELDERLY – INTERMEDIATE CARE: Expand 
intermediate care services in a community setting, including local 
intermediate care beds which can be accessed according to need, and 
reduce the hospital based service. 

• GP SERVICES: Keep GP practice based services as they are and also 
provide a broader range of services delivered in the practice. 

• DENTAL SERVICES: Keep the balance between a regular dental 
provision and the dental access service as it is now providing an 
increase in overall provision with an emphasis on regular dental care. 

Page 56



  

• PHARMACY SERVICES: Expand the service provided by pharmacies 
to include services such as health care checks and additional ‘over the 
counter’ advice from the pharmacist. 

• OPTICIAN SERVICES: Keep providing optician services the way they 
are at the moment. 

• MINOR INJURIES: Develop a walk-in centre in central Dover offering a 
comprehensive range of services including minor injuries and minor 
illness. 

• OUTPATIENTS – FIRST AND FOLLOW-UP APPOINTMENTS: More 
outpatient clinic appointments as close to home as possible – e.g. in a 
GP surgery or central Dover location. 

• CHILDREN'S SERVICES IN THE COMMUNITY: Provide enhanced 
and specialist services from a central Dover location, whether this is 
dedicated to Children’s Services or linked to other NHS provision. Low 
level and more generic services to be delivered in a range of 
community and NHS facilities. 

• CHILDREN'S ‘DAY WARD’ SERVICES – AMBULATORY CARE: 
Continue to provide ambulatory care services in Dover and co-locate 
them with other Dover children’s services on the same site such as 
radiology, minor injuries outpatients and some elements of community 
services. 

• MIDWIFERY SERVICES: Make no changes and keep the birthing unit 
the way it is at the moment. 

• IMPROVING HEALTH & WELLBEING – HEALTH PROMOTION: 
Focus delivering health promotion activities in partnership with non-
health agencies, e.g. schools, community centres, leisure centres, 
supermarkets. 

The questionnaire also included an open-ended “Other issues” section, to 
allow people to raise any concerns. The responses under this heading have 
been summarised by the PCT as follows: 

• Transport – access and frequency of public transport, eligibility to 
access NHS transport, cost of travelling to acute hospital sites outside 
of Dover; 

• Accessibility of buildings – child friendly environment, catering correctly 
for people with disabilities; 

• Condition of buildings and their suitability to provide modern health 
care in a clean and safe environment; 

• Opening hours – times of clinics, access to care outside of normal 
working hours; 

Page 57



  

• Parking at acute sites – cost of parking; 

• Strong support for the preservation of Buckland Hospital; 

• Location of services – central position on a good bus route. 

East Kent Neurorehabilitation Unit 

Between February and March 2007 a “focussed discussion” (not a 
consultation) took place on the future of the East Kent Neurorehabilitation 
Unit. Among the issues discussed was the possibility of moving the service 
from Dover to another location in East Kent. It is now intended that the Unit 
will relocate to the Kent and Canterbury Hospital during 2008. (Locating the 
service at Buckland Hospital when it was set up in 2001 was seen at the time 
as a temporary expedient.) 

Inpatient wards for older people 

Buckland Hospital’s inpatient wards for older people were due to close by the 
end of October 2007. The wards were regarded as not fit for providing modern 
standards of care and had been superseded by community-based forms of 
intermediate care in the area. 

Service delivery options 

On 16 May 2007 the PCT Board approved a paper setting out emerging 
service delivery options that stemmed from The Dover Project. These options 
had been developed by planning leads in each of the service delivery areas, 
reporting to the Dover Project Steering Group (a multi-agency body, including 
KCC, the Patient and Public Involvement Forum for the PCT, the “Dover 
Pride” regeneration project and other stakeholders, meeting on a monthly 
basis). 

The paper stated that the following key principles had been agreed by the 
PCT and the Trust for the development of Dover Project outcomes: 

• to ensure that appropriate local services are developed in Dover for 
Dover people; 

• to deliver local services in high quality environments; 

• to develop a clear vision in respect of the Buckland Hospital site; 

• to deliver local services through skilled and motivated staff. 

Critical issues affecting the development of the service delivery options were: 

• future strategic direction for the Hospitals Trust and the PCT – 
including the Trust’s intention to remove inpatient beds from Buckland 
Hospital; 

Page 58



  

• commissioning issues – relating to the commissioning plans of the 
Dover and Aylesham Practice-based Commissioning Group; 

• estates and property – particularly regarding the future of the Buckland 
Hospital site, given that “A hospital estate built over 100 years ago with 
numerous poor-quality additions can not provided the patient 
environment that meets the required standards for privacy, dignity and 
appropriate clinical adjacencies”. 

Buckland Hospital Steering Group 

A Buckland Hospital Steering Group was then set up, meeting every two 
months under the chairmanship of Howard Jones, Facilities Director of East 
Kent Hospitals Trust. 

It was proposed that services would continue to be provided from Buckland 
Hospital for at least four more years – but the age and quality of the estate 
made it impossible to continue providing services indefinitely in the buildings 
that currently existed on the site. 

It was proposed to retain the Renal Satellite Unit in Dover, although not 
necessarily at the Buckland site. 

Any decision on the future overall configuration of services in Dover, and what 
was to be done with the Buckland Hospital site, was to be made in the context 
of “Dover Pride”, in which Eastern and Coastal Kent PCT is an active partner. 

It was argued by some (e.g. Dr Sewell) that it would be more efficient to co-
locate services at a single location in Dover, rather than scattering them 
across satellite sites – so there should continue to be a hospital in the town, 
either at the Buckland site or some other location. 

Patient and Public Involvement Forum referral to Health Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee 

On 13 December 2007 the Eastern and Coastal Kent Patient and Public 
Involvement Forum (PPIF) discussed and agreed a document (drafted by 
PPIF member Lorraine Sencicle) expressing concern about the future of 
health services in Dover. 

On 20 December the document was sent to Eastern and Coastal Kent PCT, 
which then responded to the points in it. The PPIF was not satisfied with the 
PCT’s responses and agreed at its meeting on 31 January 2008 to refer the 
matter to the Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 

The PPIF document stated that “we consider that the Dover health services 
are deteriorating and therefore the patients and public are being 
disadvantaged”. The Dover Project failed to deal with the actual location of 
services, and the PCT and the Trust are failing to explain what services will be 
provided and where, all the while running down Buckland Hospital. 

Page 59



  

The PCT’s response was that The Dover Project was concerned with services 
rather than buildings and that detailed consideration was now being given to 
options for the actual provision of services. 

The Trust, meanwhile, was working on a Strategic Outline Case that would 
satisfy agreed criteria for access and affordability. It was clear that Buckland 
Hospital in its present form was not sustainable in the longer term – the issue 
was whether the site would be redeveloped in some way or services would be 
reprovisioned elsewhere in the Dover area. 

More recently a new campaign in support of keeping hospital facilities at the 
Buckland site has been set up, led by former County Council Member Reg 
Hansell. This supports the view taken by the PPIF (which was abolished, 
along with all other PPIFs, at the end of March 2008). 

The Trust’s Proposals 

The Trust has now completed its strategic options appraisal. The outcome of 
this is that it intends to develop two options into full business cases. These 
are:  

1) to refurbish part of Buckland Hospital, so that the facilities are fit for 
purpose – this would mean an investment of just over £8 million; 

2) to provide a new building on the Buckland site, at a cost of around £11 
million. 

These options have been agreed by the Trust’s Chief Executive’s Group, 
Clinical Management Board, Strategic Development Committee and, most 
recently, the Board. The necessary capital expenditure is being built into 
future plans and architects are being engaged to work on the options. 

The Trust has given Dover District Council and the PCT until August 2008 to 
come up with an alternative solution, based in central Dover, which can then 
be assessed against the two options for the Buckland site. 

If it is decided not to redevelop the Buckland Hospital site for healthcare 
services, any proceeds from the sale of it (most likely to a housing developer) 
will go substantially to the Trust (or entirely to it, if the Trust has become a 
Foundation Trust by the time of the sale).1 

                                            
1
 Disposal of NHS property is governed by the Department of Health's Estate Code. The 
Code aims to ensure that the use of NHS estate will “improve the health and well-being of the 
population through the resources available” by requiring NHS Trusts to use their estate 
“efficiently, effectively and strategically”. Trusts can retain some of the proceeds of sales of 
land and buildings – up to £1 million for most Trusts and up to £5 million for top-performing 
Trusts. Proceeds above these thresholds are made available for use within the wider local 
health economy, apparently at the discretion of the relevant Strategic Health Authority. These 
rules, however, don't apply to Foundation Trusts, which are able to keep the proceeds of 
estate sales in their entirety. The estimated value of the Buckland Hospital site is £16.6 million 
(£4.2 million for the land and £12.4 million for the buildings). 

Page 60



  

A refurbished or rebuilt hospital at the Buckland site would not have any 
inpatient beds, other than maternity beds, and would not function as a district 
general hospital with an A&E department. 

 

David Turner 

Research Officer, Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

30 April 2008 

Page 61



Page 62

This page is intentionally left blank



Our NHS, Our Future – Next Stage Review (The Darzi Review) 

Background Briefing 

Lord Darzi 

Ara Darzi holds the Paul Hamlyn Chair of Surgery at Imperial College London, 
and is an Honorary Consultant Surgeon at St Mary’s Hospital and the Royal 
Marsden Hospital. 

His main clinical and academic interest is in minimally invasive therapy 
(“keyhole” surgery), including the use of surgical robots and image-guided 
surgery. 

Prof Darzi was knighted in December 2002. In June 2007 he was made a 
member of the House of Lords and appointed Parliamentary Under Secretary 
at the Department of Health, as part of Prime Minister Gordon Brown's 
“government of all the talents” initiative. 

Healthcare for London: A Framework for Action (The London Darzi 
Review) 

In December 2006 NHS London, the Strategic Health Authority for the capital, 
asked Prof Darzi to develop a strategy for the NHS in London for the next five 
to ten years. 

His report, Healthcare for London: A Framework for Action, was published in 
July 2007. It took as its starting point the following principles: 

• Services should be focused on individual needs and choices. 

• Services should be localised where possible, or regionalised where that 
improves the quality of care. 

• There should be joined-up care and partnership working, maximising 
the contribution of the entire workforce. 

• Prevention is better than cure. 

• There must be a focus on reducing difficulties in accessing health and 
healthcare across London. 

On this basis, the report proposed the following changes in the pattern of 
service delivery: 

• centralisation and the creation of networks for the treatment of major 
trauma, heart attacks and strokes; 

• a shift of routine diagnostic procedures and outpatient appointments 
out of large hospitals and into new “polyclinics”; 

• increased use of the day-case setting for many procedures; 

Agenda Item 8

Page 63



• centralisation of more specialised in-patient care into large hospitals. 

A London-wide public consultation was conducted from November 2007 to 
March 2008. An analysis of consultation responses will be published on 6 May 
2008. London Primary Care Trust Boards will then consider the proposals and 
in June 2008 a Joint Committee of PCTs will meet in public to agree 
recommendations for health strategy in London over the next 10 years. 

A paper that was recently put before the Board of NHS London suggested that 
there may be "insufficient leadership capacity and capability in primary care 
trusts and allied NHS organisations" in London to deliver Lord Darzi’s 
recommendations. 

Polyclinics 

Lord Darzi argued that there was a need for a new kind of community-based 
care at a level between that of current GP practice and conventional acute 
hospitals – a need that could be filled by the creation of what he termed 
“polyclinics”. 

A polyclinic is a relatively small healthcare facility, serving a local community 
and hosting a wide range of health services – including some that have, within 
the NHS, traditionally been provided in acute (district general) hospitals. 

Polyclinics have long been major features of healthcare systems in some 
countries. In the Soviet Union, the greater part of healthcare was provided 
through polyclinics that combined the role of a hospital outpatients department 
with that of a general medical practice and served populations of several 
thousand. This system (known as the Shemasko system) was a model for 
healthcare in other Communist countries. In Cuba, polyclinics serving 
populations of around 30,000 provide GP services and a range of specialties, 
as well as diagnostic services. Germany has some 400 polyclinics. These are 
mostly a legacy of the health system in the former East Germany – but new 
polyclinics have begun to be established as part of far-reaching healthcare 
system reforms. 

The polyclinics envisaged by Lord Darzi could provide the following: 

• GP services; 

• community services; 

• outpatient services; 

• minor operations; 

• urgent care; 

• diagnostics; 

• community mental health care; 

Page 64



• management of long-term conditions; 

• pharmacies; and 

• other primary care services, such as optical and dental services. 

They could be combined with local authority services and leisure facilities; and 
they could be co-located with a hospital or free-standing in the community. 
Their size could allow them to offer extended opening hours. 

On this model, polyclinics would become the site of most GP care. Those 
practices remaining separate from polyclinics could be networked with a 
polyclinic, allowing patients to use their extended facilities. 

Lord Darzi envisaged that between five and 10 polyclinics would be 
established in the capital by 2009. He did not spell out the contractual 
arrangements under which they would be commissioned. 

Our NHS, Our Future – NHS Next Stage Review, Interim Report 

When Lord Darzi became a minister in June 2007 he was asked by the new 
Secretary of State for Health, Alan Johnson, to undertake a review of the NHS 
across the whole of England, with a view to producing a strategy for the next 
decade (effectively following on from the NHS Plan of 2000). He was tasked 
with producing an interim report within four months and the final report in 12 
months (to coincide with the sixtieth anniversary of the creation of the NHS). 

In October 2007 Our NHS, Our Future – NHS Next Stage Review, Interim 
Report was published. In it, Lord Darzi stated that the NHS should be: 

• fair; 

• personalised; 

• effective; 

• safe. 

He thought the NHS needed to: 

• focus on quality of care as well as capacity; 

• be ambitious in responding to the aspirations of patients and the public 
for a more personalised service; 

• ensure that change was animated by the needs and preferences of 
patients; 

• support local change from the centre, rather than handing down 
instructions; 

Page 65



• make best use of resources to provide the most effective care, 
efficiently. 

Lord Darzi advocated that certain immediate steps should be taken ahead of 
his final report: 

1) implementing a comprehensive strategy for reducing health 
inequalities, as announced by the Secretary of State; 

2) embedding patient choice within the full spectrum of NHS-funded care, 
going beyond elective surgery into new areas such as primary care and 
long-term conditions through: 

a. the investment of new resources to bring new GP practices 
(provided by traditional independent practitioners or by new 
private providers) to local communities where they are most 
needed, starting with the 25% of PCTs with the poorest 
provision 

b. newly procured health centres in easily accessible locations, 
offering a range of convenient services for all local people, 
whether or not they are directly registered with GPs in these 
centres 

c. the introduction by PCTs of new measures to develop greater 
flexibility in GP opening hours including the introduction of new 
providers – so that, over time, the majority of GP practices will 
offer services in the evening or at the weekend; 

3) the establishment of a Health Innovation Council, to be the guardians 
of innovation; 

4) support for the National Patient Safety Agency in establishing a single 
point of access for frontline workers to report incidents (“Patient Safety 
Direct”); and the following measures to reduce further rates of 
healthcare-associated infections: 

a. legislation to create a new health and adult social care regulator 
(the Care Quality Commission) with tough powers 

b. powers for matrons to report concerns on hygiene direct to the 
new regulator 

c. the introduction of MRSA screening for all elective admissions in 
2008, and for all emergency admissions as soon as practicable 
by 2010; 

5) ensuring that any major change in the pattern of local NHS hospital 
services is clinically led and locally accountable by publishing new 
guidelines to make clear that: 

Page 66



a. change should only be initiated when there is a clear and strong 
clinical basis for doing so 

b. consultation should proceed only where there is effective and 
early engagement with the public 

c. resources are made available to open new facilities alongside 
old ones closing. 

Lord Darzi announced that groups of health and social care staff (over 1,000 
people in total) would be established in every region of the country to discuss 
how best to achieve this vision across the following areas of care: 

• maternity and newborn care; 

• children’s health; 

• planned care; 

• mental health; 

• staying healthy; 

• long-term conditions; 

• acute care; 

• end-of-life care. 

Lord Darzi also asked the Chief Executive of the NHS, David Nicholson, to 
chair a national working group of experts to consider the scope, form and 
content of a possible NHS Constitution. 

Equitable Access to Primary Medical Care programme 

Following the interim report, the government declared its intention to 
implement Lord Darzi’s proposals on access to Primary Medical Services 
through the “Equitable Access to Primary Medical Care” programme. This is 
an initiative to procure: 

• over 100 GP practices in the 25% of PCTs that are the most 
under-doctored (38 in all – the only one in the South East Coast 
area is Medway PCT); 

• the development of at least one “GP-led health centre” in each 
PCT area (there are 152 in total). 

The health centres (which are being referred to as “Darzi clinics” or 
polyclinics) must: 

• be in easily accessible locations; 

Page 67



• deliver core GP services; 

• maximise opportunities to integrate and co-locate with other 
community-based services, including social care; 

• be open between 8:00am and 8:00pm, seven days a week; 

• offer both bookable GP appointments and walk-in services; 

• provide services for both registered and non-registered patients. 

The government has stated that additional funding for this procurement 
exercise (both GP practices and GP-led health centres) will be provided to 
PCTs from a new £250 million Access Fund, with the GP-led health centres 
costed by the DoH at around £790,000 each. Funds will be added to PCTs’ 
allocations, on a weighted capitation basis – apparently with ringfencing. 

It is being emphasised that this funding is for new capacity – not the 
expansion or replacement of existing surgeries or health centres. Investment 
must be for additional clinical capacity (i.e. extra GPs, nurses and support 
staff). And the procurement is for new and innovative services, not necessarily 
for new buildings or facilities. 

PCTs will most likely be using the Alternative Provider Medical Services 
contracting route for this procurement, meaning that contracts could mostly, or 
entirely, go to corporate providers – although the DoH says that existing GPs 
must be able to compete on a “level playing field” with the independent sector. 

Alliance Boots have said they could host all 152 of the GP-led health centres. 
Lord Darzi has reportedly held meetings with at least 15 potential private and 
voluntary sector providers of primary care services, including private 
healthcare providers such as BUPA, Netcare UK and Care UK, and High 
Street chemists Alliance Boots and Lloydspharmacy – with non-healthcare 
commercial organisations, such as Tesco, also “welcome to attend”. 

The DoH will not scrutinise individual plans or specifications but will ask 
Strategic Health Authorities (SHAs) to provide the necessary assurances. 
Progress will be monitored by the DoH on a monthly basis against “key 
milestones” deadlines – on an extremely demanding timescale for PCTs. 

The DoH expects all the health centres to become operational between 
January and March 2009. 

It has recently been reported in the Health Service Journal that Lord Darzi’s 
final report will include a proposal that GPs should be charged whenever their 
patients access primary care through non-emergency use of an A&E 
department, or through a walk-in centre or minor injuries unit. GPs’ 
representatives have argued that this would merely act as a disincentive for 
GPs to practice in areas with high levels of inappropriate A&E use – which 
tend to be socially deprived and underdoctored areas. 

Page 68



Individual budgets 

Individual budgets for social care (now called “personal budgets”), in addition 
to direct payments, were first mooted in a January 2005 paper by the Prime 
Minister’s Strategy Unit. The government announced that it would proceed 
with the development of individual budgets in the Green Paper Independence, 
Well-being and Choice: Our Vision for the Future of Social Care for Adults in 
England (March 2005). 

While direct payments only cover local authority social care budgets, 
individual budgets combine this money with that available from other public 
funding streams. 

Service users eligible for these funds have a single transparent sum, 
equivalent to their total entitlement, allocated to them. They can then choose 
to take this money as a direct payment in cash, as provision of services, or as 
a mixture of both cash and services, up to the value of their total budget. As 
with direct payments, the social care element is subject to the usual policies 
regarding means-testing and charging. Unlike direct payments, individual 
budgets can be used for services provided in-house by local authorities. 

In Lord Darzi’s interim report he stated: 

I have also been impressed by what I have heard about the 
introduction of individual budgets in social care linked to direct 
payments and individual budget pilots, which have clearly transformed 
the care of some social care users. From this, we need to learn how to 
support and allow eligible service users increasingly to design their own 
tailored care and support packages. This could include personal 
budgets that include NHS resources. As a first step, we will encourage 
practice-based commissioners to use NHS funds much more flexibly to 
secure alternatives to traditional NHS provision where this would 
provide a better response to an individual’s needs, e.g. through respite 
care or support, installing grab rails to help maintain independence, 
self-monitoring equipment for people with long term conditions, 
supporting carers of terminally ill patients, and so on. 

In November 2007 this was explicitly endorsed by the NHS Chief Executive, 
David Nicholson, when he addressed the King’s Fund: 

I think we will see a move to more and more individual budgets 
involving allocation of resources - either yearly resources or episodic 
resources - to people, and what we will see coming with that is the 
need for a kind of brokerage, bringing people together and then buying 
on their behalf or commissioning on their behalf. I think we will see that. 
I think we should encourage it and develop it. 

In December 2007 Putting People First made explicit reference to Lord Darzi’s 
comments on individual budgets in the NHS. 

Page 69



In January 2008 the Prime Minister, speaking to an audience of health 
professionals at King’s College London said: 

During 2008 we will bring forward a patient’s prospectus that sets out 
how we will extend to all 15 million patients with a chronic or long-term 
condition access to a choice . . . Real control and power for patients, 
supported by clinicians and carers. And where it is appropriate, just as 
with personal care budgets for the 1.5 million social care users, it could 
include the offer of a personal health budget. 

In an interview with the Sunday Telegraph on 30 March 2008 Alan Johnson 
clearly stated his support for the idea of individual budgets in the NHS for 
patients with chronic conditions. 

Given all of the above, it seems highly likely that proposals on individual 
budgets in the NHS will be contained in Lord Darzi’s final report when it is 
published in early July 2008. 

The extension of individual budgets to the NHS has been strongly advocated 
by a number of academics (including Prof Julian Le Grand, who was health 
policy adviser to Tony Blair during the latter’s premiership), as well as by the 
Social Market Foundation and the Conservative Party. 

It is argued that individual budgets in the NHS would: 

• lead to greater personalisation of services; 

• help overcome capacity constraints in the NHS; 

• allow better coordination of care for individuals using multiple services; 

• mean more transparency in the allocation of NHS funds; 

• foster equity by allowing personalisation of services for NHS patients 
as well as private patients; 

• deliver better value for money; 

• lead to innovation and service development; and 

• possibly improve health outcomes by helping people manage their own 
health better. 

Individual budgets are in line with the government’s introduction of market-
style mechanisms into the NHS, through means such as Patient Choice. 

The following have been identified as areas of NHS care in which individual 
budgets could be piloted: 

• services for people with long-term conditions; 

• mental health services; 

Page 70



• maternity services; 

• expensive out-of-area placements; 

• continuing nursing care (for instance, in the case of a patient with 
Alzheimer’s Disease, an area that has been the subject of a legal test 
case about the limits of NHS funding, the Pointon case) – there are 
indications that this is the most likely candidate for a pilot of individual 
budgets in the NHS; 

• services for learning disabled people (although, where such services 
are still within the NHS, they are increasingly being transferred to local 
authorities). 

A radical version of individual budgets might go beyond this, with patients able 
to use sums of money, allocated to procedures under a national tariff, to 
choose from a range of providers. 

It is unclear how exactly commissioning of services by patients using 
individual budgets would relate to other elements of NHS “system reform”, 
particularly Practice-based Commissioning by General Practitioners and 
“world-class” (strategic) commissioning by Primary Care Trusts. 

There are also questions around the possible impact of individual budgets on 
the work of the National Institute for Health and Clinical Excellence (NICE). 
NICE has a remit to evaluate the effectiveness and cost-effectiveness of 
clinical interventions and to issue guidance accordingly, helping to ensure that 
the NHS achieves value for money. Allowing patients to choose to spend NHS 
funds on treatments that have not been approved by NICE would appear to 
risk undermining the role of the Institute. 

Some critics fear that individual budgets could actually work to compound the 
Inverse Care Law (that those who most need care are least able to access it) 
– contrary to claims made in support of the idea. 

According to this view, market-type mechanisms tend most to empower those 
who have always done best out of the NHS and social care (the better off and 
less sick). At the same time, such mechanisms place service provision more 
in the hands of independent providers, who will want to concentrate on those 
communities, patients, conditions and procedures that yield the highest rate of 
return. The poorest and sickest will be least able to work the system to their 
advantage (especially without adequate “support brokerage” and “care 
navigation”); and they could suffer the most from the undermining of publicly-
provided services. 

Individual budgets also raise the possibility of breaching one of the NHS’s 
core principles – that NHS money is never used to subsidise the purchasing of 
private care by the better off. Under Patient Choice, NHS patients can choose 
independent providers, but their care is still entirely on the NHS, wholly 
purchased by the NHS at its tariff price, with no “co-payments” by patients. A 
voucher system, such as individual budgets, could allow better off patients to 

Page 71



take NHS cash and use it, topped up with their own money, to buy private 
care not available to other NHS patients. 

Allowing “co-payments” in this way could further be seen as potentially 
allowing de facto extensions of patient charging in the NHS (patient charges 
are currently confined to prescriptions, and to primary-care optical and dental 
services) – as indicated in Our health, our care, our say. 

David Cameron’s speech to the King’s Fund 

On 22 April 2008 the Leader of the Opposition, David Cameron, gave a 
speech to the King’s Fund in which he criticised government health policy, 
including the proposals that are emerging from the Darzi Review. 

He argued that “The plan for a national network of polyclinics is the biggest 
upheaval in primary care since the creation of the NHS” and accused the 
government of wanting to “make GPs salaried employees of the state, and 
abolish small practices in favour of large multipurpose centres”. Mr Cameron 
continued: 

The Government says that in London, most patients will be within a 
mile and half of a polyclinic. The people who need GPs the most are 
the elderly, those with small children and those with long-term 
conditions. Those are the people least able to get to a polyclinic, and 
least comfortable in a large impersonal institution. They like to rely on 
the doctor they know, at the end of their street, often in a building not 
much bigger than a house. They have a human relationship with their 
GP that they simply won't have with a member of staff at a polyclinic. 

He stated that, whilst not objecting to polyclinics in principle, he objected 

to the principle of imposing them on local communities without public 
support and against the wishes of GPs themselves. Where they occur, 
they should occur naturally, as the voluntary combination of free agents 
- not as the latest structural re-organisation of the NHS. Lord Darzi, the 
health minister behind the polyclinics plan, has admitted that doctors 
will, effectively, be forced into polyclinics using the GP contract. It is 
quite wrong. 

If the Darzi plan is implemented a thousand GP surgeries are likely to 
close in London alone - that's three quarters of the total. Another 600 
local surgeries will close across the country. 

House of Commons Opposition Day debate 

On 23 April 2008 an Opposition Day debate took place in the House of 
Commons around an Opposition motion expressing concern "about the lack of 
empirical and clinical evidence for the establishment of polyclinics in every 
primary care trust" and opposing "the central imposition of polyclinics against 
local health needs and requirements". The Opposition argued that the 
government’s plans on polyclinics entailed the imposition of a “one-size-fits-

Page 72



all” template across the country, threatening the future of family doctor 
services and undermining continuity of care. 

The Secretary of State responded that “There is no national policy for 
replacing traditional GP surgeries with health centres or, indeed, polyclinics. 
There are no plans to herd GPs against their will, or the will of patients, into 
super-surgeries.” Mr Johnson argued that the investment of £250 million in 
additional primary care for underserved areas should be welcomed. He stated 
that Lord Darzi’s polyclinic plan for London was “not a blueprint for the rest of 
the country”. 

 

David Turner 

(Research Officer, Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee) 

30 April 2008 

Page 73



Page 74

This page is intentionally left blank



 

   

 
 
 
 
 
Foundation Trust progress report 
 
The Foundation Trust (FT) application process has changed recently the SHA will now be taking 
the lead role in determining the readiness of Trusts for Foundation Trust authorisation rather than the 
Department of Health. The process the SHA are proposing enables both an improved quality of 
application and ensures that Trust Boards assess their state of readiness to achieve Foundation 
Trust licence, working collaboratively with the SHA. 

 
The SHA will need to determine the overall potential readiness of each Trust in all areas, particularly 
as patient safety and service performance together with governance issues are likely to be as critical 
a factor as the financial performance. 

 
 
 REVISED PROCESS 
 
The key components of the revised process are: 

• There is a single robust framework that can be consistently applied 

• There is a single evidence base that can support the nomination process 

• There is explicit confirmation from the applicant Trust Board that the proposed time 
line to authorisation is achievable. 

• There is ongoing engagement with the applicant up to the point of authorisation 

• Trust readiness for Foundation Trust  status is assured 
 
Trusts with Monitor 
 

• The revised process will apply to all Trusts except those that are already with 
Monitor, e.g. Surrey & Borders Partnership Trust.  

• These Trusts will only need to come back into the process if, for any reason, they are 
rejected or deferred by Monitor.  

 
Trusts currently in the Foundation Trust pipeline 
 

• There are 5 Trusts that started their Foundation Trust application under the old 
process, all of whom have either been out to, or are currently in, public consultation. 
These Trusts are all at very different stages in the application process and agreement 
will be reached with each of those Trusts individually as to how assurance will be 
provided for each step of the new process and agreed timelines to F.T. authorisation. 

• Meetings with each organisation are currently being held. 
 
Trusts not yet in the Foundation Trust pipeline 
 

• A new internal SHA process is currently being proposed to assess the readiness for 
Trusts to reach Foundation Trust status and the table at Annex 1 summarises the 
steps and timeline of that process. 

• From the start of the process until reaching Monitor is a minimum of 9 months with a 
further 3 months for the Monitor assessment, giving a minimum of a year for Trusts to 
be authorised as an Foundation Trust.  

• Following an introductory workshop, the process begins with agreement by the Trust 
CEO and Chair that their organisation is ready to begin the process and an indicative 
timeline agreed, depending on the state of readiness at that point.  

 
 

Agenda Item 9

Page 75



 

   

 
 
 
 

• The timeline will set 2 key milestones, the initial Board to Board with the SHA and the 
expected date the application will go to the Secretary of State for onward submission 
to Monitor. 

• The initial Board to Board with the SHA will be key to signalling that the Trust is in a 
state of readiness and can progress to public consultation and will be based on the 
information received from the Trust during that previous 16 weeks. This will be similar 
to the previous diagnostic but with a greater emphasis on being developmental. 

• Following consultation and receipt of final documentation from the Trust, a second 
Board to Board is also proposed. This will be at the end of the process and will 
enable a review of final documentation following the public consultation and SHA sign 
off of final support. This final meeting could also include Monitor personnel and/or a 
current Foundation Trust CEO/Non-Executive Director to add further challenge.  

 
Ambulance Trust 

• The DH has established a separate process for Ambulance Trusts including a 
separate diagnostic process to be piloted during 2008. B 

 
 SHA TRUSTS 

Trusts are listed below in chronological order within the Foundation Trust pipeline, setting out the 
progress to date and current issues.  These dates are indicative as during the process nearly all 
Trusts have adjusted their timeframe to take account of alterations to the process, or because of 
other issues. 
 
Medway – Wave 4 Authorisation by Monitor for Foundation Trust 1 April 2008 
The Trust was authorised by Monitor to become a NHS Foundation Trust from 1 April 2008.    
 
Surrey and Borders – Wave 6 (Earliest Authorisation by Monitor for Foundation Trust 1 May 
2008) 
The Trust is providing Monitor with assurance for a number of issues including the Month 11 financial 
position, Cost Improvement Programmes and the contractual position with the PCT.   
 
Sussex Partnership – Wave 8 (Earliest Authorisation by Monitor for Foundation Trust 1 August 
2008) 
The SHA submitted the Trust’s application to the DH together with the SHA Support Form to be 
considered at the DH Applications Committee in April 2008.  The Trust currently has 3,000 public 
members in line with its plan.  A Chair was appointed to the Trust on 1 April 2008 and the previous 
Chair has been appointed as a Non Executive Director.   
 
Dartford & Gravesham –  
Deferred Wave 7 (Earliest Authorisation by Monitor for Foundation Trust 1 October 2008).   
The Trust plan, agreed with the SHA and DH, is to resubmit their application in April 2008 to the SHA 
and to the DH in May 2008, subject to achieving their MRSA target from December onwards, which is 
currently on track and the financial requirements.  Further drafts of the documentation are currently 
being reviewed by the SHA and the DH before submission to the DH on 1 May 2008.   
 
Kent & Medway Partnership – Earliest Authorisation by Monitor for Foundation Trust 1 
December 2008 
Public consultation ends in April 2008.  The Trust has revised its previous timetable by two months 
and is planning on submission to the DH in August 2008.  The Trust is currently working on its third 
draft of the documentation for submission to the SHA at the end of April 2008.   
 
 
 

Page 76



 

   

East Kent Hospitals – Earliest Authorisation by Monitor for Foundation Trust 1 December 2008 
Public consultation ends in April 2008.  The SHA and the Trust are currently working to a timetable 
that will see a submission to the DH applications committee at the beginning of August 2008 
 
East Sussex Hospitals –  
Deferred Wave 8 (Earliest Authorisation by Monitor for Foundation Trust 1 February 2009) 
Since the Trust agreed with the SHA to defer their submission to the DH from Wave 7, an action plan 
has been progressing with the SHA regularly monitoring progress against the plan.   
 
The Royal West Sussex NHS Trust 
Worthing and Southlands Hospitals NHS Trust 
Brighton and Sussex University Hospitals NHS Trust 
The SHA reported to the DH that it considers Royal West Sussex NHS Trust, Worthing and 
Southlands Hospitals NHS Trust and Brighton and Sussex University Hospitals NHS Trust to be in a 
position to obtain NHS FT status by mid 2009.  However, this is subject to the outcome of the Fit for 
the Future (FFF) programme.   
 
Surrey and Sussex Healthcare NHS Trust 
Maidstone and Tunbridge Wells NHS Trust 
For Surrey and Sussex Healthcare NHS Trust and Maidstone and Tunbridge Wells NHS Trust, the 
SHA has moved authorisation dates for both organisations to mid 2010, to allow time for the Trusts to 
evidence sustainable improvement in both performance and finance.   
 
Ashford & St Peters Hospitals NHS Trust 
No date has been given for Ashford and St Peters to become a Foundation Trust in its own right as a 
merger/acquisition option was being worked up with Frimley Park Hospital Foundation Trust which 
has recently been discounted by both of the trusts. 
 
Royal Surrey County NHS Trust 
The SHA Board agreed to invite Royal Surrey County Hospital NHS Trust to complete Phase 1 of the 
SHA's Foundation Trust readiness assessment process.  Phase 1 is the period up to the first Board to 
Board ahead of approving the Trust to go to public consultation.   
 
South Downs Health NHS Trust 
Until the future of this organisation in relation to Foundation Trust status has been decided, no date 
has been agreed. 
 
South East Coast Ambulance Services NHS Trust 
The DH is currently developing a diagnostic programme for ambulance trusts that will be piloted later 
this year and then rolled out across all other ambulance trusts.   The Trust will be able to apply for 
NHS Foundation Trust from April 2009 and will be looking to do so as early as possible.   

Page 77



Page 78

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes â•ﬁ 28 March 2008
	4 Monitoring of outcomes from conclusions and recommendation of previous Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee meetings
	Item 4b - HOSC Action sheet
	Item 4c - Partnership Trust information

	5 Working Group â•ﬁ Healthcare Commission Core Standards
	Item 5b - HOSC Working Group 25 April 2008
	Item 5c - HOSC 28 March 08 Core Standards

	6 Draft Work Programme for June 2008 to April 2009
	Item 6b - Forward Work Programme 2008 revised

	7 Healthcare services in Dover
	8 Our NHS, Our Future â•ﬁ Next Stage Review (Darzi Review)
	9 Timetable for Foundation Trust status applications by trusts in Kent and Medway

